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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE
RESULTS
ES
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET BT FET
Revenue Wz 806,713 674,197 603,736 489,853 297,066
Gross profit EH 214,711 184,899 185,578 144,984 74534
Profit for the year FRER 92,706 90,076 99,121 93,206 42,85
Profit attributable to: T EEEGRF
Equity holders of the Company AREERRAA 93,050 89,943 97,305 92,150 42778
Non-controlling interests TR (344) 133 1816 1,056 73
92,706 90,076 99,121 93,206 42,851
Total Assets BEE 438,964 344,794 214612 227,200 144,341
Total Liabilities oY=l 138,826 103,513 98,775 110,324 88210
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of ASR Holdings for
the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Despite the challenging market conditions for the air cargo industry during the year, ASR
Holdings continued to execute its long-term growth strategy. Our contracts with airlines
have increased from more than 45 to more than 50, and our office locations from 21 to
29, and correspondingly, staff count has climbed from 174 to 231. Also, 2013 marked the
sixth consecutive year that we have achieved revenue growth, which reached HK$806.7
million or a strong rise of 19.7% over the previous year. This success was thanks to the
concerted effort of our committed management team and the entire workforce, including

of our joint ventures and subsidiaries.

During the year, the overall business environment remained difficult for air cargo
operators. Based on an International Air Transport Association (“IATA")'s report in March
2014, the full-year 2013 global Freight Tonne Kilometers (“FTKs") rose by 1.4% over
2012. The demand side of the air cargo market only realized modest growth, as major
economies performed below expectations. Furthermore, as reported by IATA, increasing
protectionist measures by governments have negatively affected certain trade lanes. On
the supply side, overcapacity has persisted. The factors that have contributed to this,
include the freighter-conversion of B747-400 jetliners from passenger aircrafts, increasing
passenger flight belly cargo capacity, and the entry of new regional airlines. In 2013, cargo
capacity grew faster than demand at 2.6% year-on-year, resulting in a further decline in

global Freight Load Factor (“FLF") to 45.3% as compared to year 2012.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

OUTLOOK FOR 2014

Looking ahead, the future of the air cargo industry will be promising despite short-term
challenges. The problem of overcapacity will persist, and intense market competition will
result in downward pressure on vield. However, we believe that world trade will continue
to expand and that; China and Asia, together with the Middle East and Latin America
will remain the growth engines. ASR Holdings will continue to grow in two directions.
First, with regards to our core business, we will expand our airlines portfolio in order to
enhance ASR Holding's services offerings as a one-stop solution to its expansive small-to-
medium customer agency network. We will also continue to bolster our office network in
South East Asia, India and China so as to improve our operational and capacity utilization.
In addition, we will look to capture new revenue opportunities, such as the introduction of
an electronic booking platform that will create synergies with our existing sales network,
and in turn enhance coverage with more targeted customers. Such a platform would
operate around the clock, and would enable paperless transactions and address air-cargo

booking trends.

Other opportunities to be explored include exploiting the increasing take-up of
e-commerce. Specifically, ASR Holdings would serve as the transportation link between
e-commerce merchants and e-shoppers. In fact, we have already commenced operations
early this year, helping e-commerce merchants in the Pearl River Delta and Yangtze River
Delta to serve customers in South East Asian countries and Australia. The next phase will

be to further expand coverage to Europe and the Americas.

ASR Holdings has also invested in a new venture in Helsinki, Finland. As of March 2014,
we have begun operating an Off-Airport Cargo Center that provides freight handling
solution to the local cargo community, specifically air cargo shipments in and out of
Finland, Scandinavia and the Nordic and Baltic regions. We are also exploring the
possibility of providing import and export services from these areas to Asia, including

China as part of the new high-potential niche segments we are targeting.

As one of the leading air-freight solutions providers in the wholesale market, we will
maintain our commitment to grow and expand our core business. At the same time, we
will formulate strategies for realizing long-term sustainable growth including developing

new revenue streams and tapping new business segments.
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APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to the entire workforce,
without whom ASR Holdings would not be able to succeed. Our staff are our most
valuable asset and the main reason why ASR Holdings has achieved six consecutive years
of revenue growth. | wish also to thank the Board of Directors, management and business

partners for their tireless efforts to help turning our plans into a successfull reality.

Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR DT

OVERVIEW

The Group has achieved encouraging results in 2013, reporting an increase of 3.6%
in attributable profit to the equity holders of the Company to HK$93.1 million (2012:
HK$89.9 million). During the year, the cargo handled by the Group increased by 24.3%
to 53,058 tons (2012: 42,689 tons), with revenue rising by 19.7% to HK$806.7 million
(2012: HK$674.2 million) and gross profit increasing by 16.1% to HK$214.7 million (2012:
HK$184.9 million). The Group has also maintained a strong financial position with no
borrowings and with cash and cash equivalents of HK$252.5 million (2012: HK$192.9

million).

The Board of Directors of the Group has recommended a final dividend of HKI.8
cents per share (2012: HK1.75 cents restated from HK3.5 cents per share before share
subdivision) and a special dividend of HK15 cents per share (2012: Nil) for the year ended
31 December 2013.

In 2013, the business environment for the air cargo industry remained challenging. Overall,
global air cargo demand has remained flat, while an oversupply of air cargo capacity
has persisted. The recovery of major economies has been slower than expected and
growth in world trade was weaker than normal. This dull picture was mirrored in the air
cargo industry, with an IATA report in March 2014 revealing growth of |.4% in global
Freight Tonne Kilometers (“FTKs"), and growth of 2.6% in global Available Freight Tonne
Kilometers ("AFTKs"). Capacity grew faster than demand, with the global Freight Load
Factor (“FLF") remaining weak at 45.3%.

Despite the challenging operating environment, the Group has still managed to grow
during the reporting year by expanding its presence in the wholesale market for outbound
air routes departing mainly from the Asia Pacific to a vast number of global destinations.
This expansion was realized through the Group's strong alliances forged with airlines,
integrated carriers and freight forwarders over the years. As at 31 December 2013, the
number of airline and integrated carrier appointments with the Group increased to more
than 50 (2012: 45); the top 100 customers accounted for approximately 65% of total
sales; and the number of office locations increased to 29 in total (2012: 21), bolstered by
four in China (Guangzhou Baiyun Airport, Zhengzhou, Dongguan and Kumming), three in

Asia (Singapore, Malaysia and India) and one in Europe (Helsinki, Finland).
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" MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2014, the business environment for the air cargo industry will remain
challenging. On the demand side, recovery of major economies is expected to be slow,
which may affect demand for high-value air cargo such as semi-conductor products.
China's export figures were below market expectations for the first two months of 2014,
suggesting that exports for the full year will possibly be sluggish with slower growth
compared to previous years. Moreover, the weaker JPY and KOR currencies will present
further challenges to export demand of China. However, IATA remains optimistic and
predicts a cyclical uptum in air cargo demand as reflected by both business confidence and
FTKs. On the supply side, overcapacity in the air cargo market remains due to increase in
cargo belly capacity driven by more demand from passenger traffic. Also, with passenger
aircrafts being converted into cargo freighters, still more air freight capacity will be created,

resulting in intense market competition and downward pressure on yield performance.

Notwithstanding the difficult business environment, the management is confident that
the Group will continue to expand in the wholesale market. To achieve organic growth
of the core business, the Group will explore more airline appointment opportunities and
expand its network in China, South East Asia (such as Cambodia, Vietnam, Indonesia and
the Philippines where high growth potential exists) and India. Concurrently, the Group will
seek to diversify its business in order to increase revenue streams. This involves the official
launch of the Group's electronic booking platform in the first quarter of 2014 which
targets a new segment of freight forwarders in the Greater China region, and the official
introduction of express cargo products to Asia, UK, Australia and the Americas, together

with the official opening of a cargo terminal in Helsinki.

In view of the challenging environment, global economic uncertainties and overcapacity
in the air cargo industry, compounded by rising labor, rental and administration costs
associated with added business volume, the management will be committed to building
expansion momentum leading to the organic growth of the core business, while at the
same time seizing opportunities to diversify the Group's operations to drive both top line

and bottom line growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR DT

REVENUE

The Group's revenue amounted to approximately HK$806.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2013, representing an increase of approximately 19.7% when compared
with last year. This was due to an increase in air cargo handled by the Group, rising from

42,689 tons for the year ended 3| December 2012 to 53,058 tons for this year.

REVENUE FOR THE REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Revenue derived from flight destinations in the Asia-Pacific region increased by
approximately HK$133.5 million or 35.8% to approximately HK$506.4 million for the year
2013 (2012: approximately HK$372.9 million). The increase in revenue was primarily due
to our Group's continued focus on providing air cargo services covering the destinations
in Asian countries and entering into new purchasing arrangements with airlines/integrated

carriers.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in Europe decreased by approximately
HK$26.3 million or 17.5% to approximately HK$124.4 million for the year 2013 (2012
approximately HK$150.7 million). The decrease in revenue in this region was primarily
due to the decrease in air cargo handled by the Group for shipments to Europe during

the year.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in America increased by approximately HK$9.7
million or 13.3% to approximately HK$82.6 million for the year 2013 (2012: approximately
HK$72.9 million). The increase in revenue in this region was primarily due to the increase
in air cargo handled by the Group during the year, which also included the destination in

North America.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in Africa increased by approximately HK$15.6
million or 20.1% to approximately HK$93.3 million for the year 2013 (2012: approximately
HK$77.7 million). The increase in revenue in this region was primarily due to the increase
in air cargo handled by the Group during the year, which also included the destinations in

Africa.
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" MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROSS PROFIT

Overall gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 16.1% from approximately
HK$184.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to approximately HK$214.7
million for this year, and overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 27.4%
to approximately 26.6% respectively. The contractions were due to excess capacity

available on the market.

GROSS PROFIT FOR THE REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in the Asia-Pacific region increased by
approximately 20.2% from approximately HK$155.9 million in 2012 to approximately
HK$187.4 million in 2013, which was primarily attributable to the improved demand in

most of Asia’s market.

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in Europe decreased by approximately 0.9%
from approximately HK$11.4 million in 2012 to approximately HK$1 1.3 million in 2013,
which was primarily attributable to the lower-than-expected profit growth in providing the

Group's air cargo services covering the destinations in Europe.

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in America decreased by approximately 9.3%,
from approximately HK$4.3 million in 2012 to approximately HK$3.9 million in 2013,
which was primarily attributable to the lower-than-expected profit growth in providing the

Group's air cargo services covering the destinations in America.

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in Africa decreased by approximately 8.3%
from approximately HK$13.3 million in 2012 to approximately HK$12.2 million in 2013,
which was primarily attributable to the lower-than-expected profit growth in providing the

Group's air cargo services covering the destinations in Africa.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR DT

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$102.8 million (2012: approximately HK$77.9 million), representing
an increase of approximately 32.0% when compared with last year, which accounted for
approximately 12.7% of the Group's turnover (2012: approximately | 1.5%). The increase
in administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in number of employees, more

sales and promotion activities and expansion of Group's network.

INCOME TAX

Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation to the operations of

the Group in the PRC, Macau and Hong Kong,

PROFITABILITY

In 2013, the Group's profit attributable to equity holders amounted to approximately
HK$93.1 million (2012: approximately HK$89.9 million), representing an increase of
approximately 3.6% as compared to 2012. The increase was mainly due to an increase
in revenue by approximately 19.7% as compared to 2012. Margin of profit attributable
to equity holders for the year was approximately |1.5% (2012: approximately 13.3%),

representing a decrease of approximately |.8 percentage points as compared to 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's returmn on equity was approximately
31.19% (2012: approximately 37.5%), which is calculated as profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company divided by equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company, representing a decrease of approximately 6.4 percentage points as compared
to 2012. The Group's relatively lower return on equity recorded was a result of the

increase in reserves as compared to 2012,

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trade receivables (net) increased by around 28.7% from approximately
HK$103.8 million as at 31 December 2012 to approximately HK$133.6 million as at 31
December 2013. The increase in trade receivables was mainly due to the increase in

revenue. The average trade receivables turnover days increased from 47 days in 2012 to
54 days in 201 3.
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" MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for 2013 was the same as
that for 2012. Our Group did not make any general allowance for doubtful debts and no
specific allowance for doubtful debts was considered necessary and provided for 2013
(2012 nil). For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had bad debts written-off
amounted to HK$0.2 million (2012: nil).

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group's trade payables primarily relate to the credit term provided by airlines. The
Group's trade payables increased by around 31.4% from approximately HK$68.2 million
as at 31 December 2012 to approximately HK$89.6 million as at 31 December 2013. The
average trade payables tumover days increased from 48 days in 2012 to 49 days in 2013.

OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables mainly represent (i) payroll and staff benefits payable; (i) accrued
expenses for utilities; and (iii) deposits received. The balance of other payables increased
by approximately 59.7% to approximately HK$32.1 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
approximately HK$20.! million) mainly due to an increase in operating expenses as a

result of the Group's business growth.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's net cash inflow from operating activities for the year 2013 amounted
to approximately HK$102.4 million (2012: approximately HK$57.7 million). As at 31
December 2013, cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$252.5 million,
representing a net increase of approximately HK$59.6 million as compared with the
position as at 31 December 2012. The increase was mainly due to the increase in cash

inflows from operating activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR DT

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had an un-utilised bank facilities of approximately
HK$78.5 million (2012: approximately HK$ 1 1'1.4 million). During the year 2012 and 2013,
the Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2013, the
gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing total bank borrowings over total assets, was

0% (2012: 0%).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$421.9
million (2012: approximately HK$334.9 million) and current liabilities of approximately
HK$137.3 million (2012: approximately HK$102.1 million). The current ratio (which is
calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was approximately 3.1 (2012:

approximately 3.3).

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$284.5
million. The key components of current assets as at 31 December 2013 included cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$252.5 million, pledged deposits of approximately
HK$26.9 million, trade receivables of approximately HK$133.6 million, and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$7.0 million. The key components
of current liabilities included trade payables of approximately HK$89.6 million, income
tax payable of approximately HK$15.6 million and other payables and accruals of

approximately HK$32.1 million.

The net current assets increased from approximately HK$232.7 million as at 31 December
2012 to approximately HK$284.5 million as at 31 December 2013 which primarily
represents the increase in cash and cash equivalents which is mainly due to cash inflows

from operating activities during the year 2013,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES

The Group had an un-utilised bank facility of approximately HK$78.5 million as at 31
December 2013 and the facility was secured by the pledged deposits of approximately
HK$26.9 million of our Group. Certain airlines and integrated carriers would require their
air cargo wholesalers to deliver bank guarantees before their appointment. The aggregate
guarantee amount provided was approximately HK$70.5 million as at 31 December 2013
(2012: approximately HK$63.9 million). Saved as disclosed above, we had no material

contingent liabilities and guarantees.
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" MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTRACTUAL AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$19.6 million (2012: approximately HK$4.8 million).

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. During the year
2013, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure, after
netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is not very significant.
However, our management monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

HUMAN RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 231 full-time employees (2012: 174 full-time

employees). The Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually
according to the relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees.
Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong
Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant amount of money to provide
for retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs incurred for the year
ended 31 December 2013 were approximately HK$60.7 million (2012: approximately
HK$45.8 million).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 201 3.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an air freight solution provider positioned in the wholesale market. The
Group principally involves purchasing air cargo space from airlines and/or integrated
carriers and on-selling such space to our customers, namely freight forwarders. Airlines
and integrated carriers generally engage their respective appointed wholesalers and freight
forwarders to market and/or on-sell their air cargo space for ease of management, cost
effectiveness and minimizing credit exposure instead of dealing with a large pool of freight
forwarders and shippers themselves. The Group's main role for airlines and integrated
carriers is to source a necessary amount of air cargos from freight forwarders on a timely

basis to enable them to maximise the utilisation of air cargo space of their aircrafts.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 7

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 53 to 54 of this annual

report.

The interim dividend of HK2.8 cents (2012: HK1.65 cents (restated)) per share was paid
during the year. The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of HKI.8 cents
per ordinary share and a special dividend of HKI5 cents per ordinary share in respect of
current year to the Shareholders. Details of the dividends are set out in Note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to HK$162.3
million (2012: HK$25.1 million). Details of movements in reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the consolidated

financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers and suppliers

respectively in the financial year were as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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FRRFRHEER

AEERMREREDAIRNERRF REEHE
HEHERRBIT :

Year ended 3| December

BZNA3IALEE

2013 2012

% of total % of total

turnover turmover

HREEEN  GREEEN

B B

The largest customer SN 3.6% 44%
Five largest customers AREP I'1.4% 12.4%
% of total % of total

purchase purchase

LB ERIREE R

Bk B

The largest supplier RAMIER 16.6% 16.3%
Five largest suppliers TREER 50.3% 51.2%

All of the above five largest customers and suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has

any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers as disclosed above.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013, the Group did not have long-term and

short-term bank loans.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

ORDINARY SHARES

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during the year are set out in

Note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years

is set out on page 4 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association

or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's shares for the year
ended 31 December 2013,

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are as

follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wei Jin Cai

Dr. Zhang Xianlin

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company's articles of association, Mr. Yu Ho Yuen,

Sunny and Mr. Wei Jin Cai will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 39 to

47 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (*AGM") has an unexpired service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

financial year under review or at any time during the financial year under review.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of his/her compliance
with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Company entered into on 29 December 201 | (details are
disclosed in the Prospectus under the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders”). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the deed of non-competition

have been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 3| December

2013 and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its
employees. The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits

to employees beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$1,250 commenced from | June 2012. Members are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 31 December 201 3.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
& EERRE

git H
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, EERAQRAREEMEEEZE2R®E - 8
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY BROREESDEER KR

OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company RAImERH  EFRARRESE T
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities FE(TERERRPERIERKPE K
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept under il 1) EXVE) 2 IR A A BV AR AR IR B 5 K
Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant & 1§ IS 35218 BFE 2 B R MR iE £
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“‘the Model RS LMETAZERETESFRHREST

Code") contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows: BI([REPRI ) AMEARA R RE A PT 2 #a
mE
LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES REHHETE
Number of
Ordinary Shares Percentage
Director = Nature of Interest EREUE ZEREE Bot
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE Corporate NG| 516,000,000 64.5%
Personal fEA 68,000,000 8.5%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEEEE Corporate NS 516,000,000 64.5%
Personal fEA 8,000,000 1.0%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BEREE Corporate NS 516,000,000 64.5%
Personal fELA 8,000,000 1.0%
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

REBEENRO RABRONER

Name of Associated

Corporation Percentage
Director =X BEEE AR Bott
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny NEREE ASR Victory 33.3%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEMEE ASR Victory 333%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BEREE ASR Victory 33.3%

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not hold any short positions in shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives or any of their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations which had been recorded in the register required

to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at the date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this report, the register of substantial Shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company had been notified of the following
substantial Shareholders’ interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the

Company's issued share capital:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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TERRAEATZROIEBRD <
E%R

RAREAE  BEZEFRPEKRIIE 336K
BEZIERFEZMEBER ARAEAET
NEERFR 2 ERRABEARR 2 BETR
A5%EA L

Number of

Ordinary Shares Percentage
Name HE ZEREE Bok
ASR Victory Limited (note 1) ASR Victory Limited (FHZE 1) 516,000,000 64.5%
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (note 1) REREE ) 584,000,000 73.0%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (note 1) BEmERE M) 524,000,000 65.5%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (note 1) BEREEGE) 524,000,000 65.5%
Ms. Lip Fung Chun, Louise (note 1) mEELLT (M) 584,000,000 73.0%
Ms. Ng Hoi Shan (note 1) RGMz (M) 524,000,000 65.5%
Ms. Mardamshina Zhanna (note 1) Mardamshina Zhanna 2 + (FiE 1) 524,000,000 65.5%
Note: B3t

(1)  ASR Victory is beneficially owned as to 33.33% by each of Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak
Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki. Ms. Lip Fung Chun, Louise, Ms. Ng Hoi Shan and
Ms. Mardamshina Zhanna, being the spouses of Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung,
Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, respectively, are deemed to be interested in the shares
held by ASR Victory under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of a short position in the
shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company that was required to be

recorded under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

() ASR VictoryBREREE - BEEXERE
EREEERHES3333% BREEFLBE
BHEXVE - ZFREZT  REMLT K
Mardamshina ZhannaZ (2Bl ARERL
EBERAERBERLENRE) 25
FAASR Victory# 5 B MR R A i
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EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Worldwide Logistics is the beneficial owner of 40% shareholding in ASR Worldwide

and therefore was a Connected Person of our Company, until the acquisition of 40%
of the issued share of ASR Worldwide by ASR Limited on |7 September 2013 (the
“Acquisition”). After the “Acquisition”, ASR Worldwide become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ASR Limited.

During the year 2013, AOE Freight, AOE Freight (Shenzhen), ASR Logistics and ASR
Worldwide had been supplying air cargo space to Worldwide Logistics. Before the
Acquisition, the supply of air cargo space arrangement was of a continuing nature and
constituted continuing connected transactions for our Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules upon listing. However, such connected transactions were constituted
only because Worldwide Logistics was a Connected Person of our Company by virtue
of its relationship with our Company's subsidiary (ie. ASR Worldwide) and Worldwide
Logistics had no other connected relationship with our Company. As the assets, profits
and revenue size test ratios of ASR Worldwide represented less than 5%, ASR Worldwide
was considered as an insignificant subsidiary of our Company pursuant to Rule [4A3|
(9) (b) of the Listing Rules and such connected transactions were exempted from all the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements set out in

Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2013 is contained in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

None of these related party transactions constitute a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which are subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders'approval requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") was conditionally
adopted by the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on
3 December 2011, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion and on
such terms as it may think fit, grants options to any employee(s) (whether full time or
part time including any Director) of any member of the Group at the exercise price for
such number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to
grant options to selected employee(s) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or

potential contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares which represents
approximately 0% of the Shares in issue on the date of this report. The maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any employee (s) (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in
any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue

from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed
10 years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an

option is exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance

of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always that it shall be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which must
be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less than

the nominal amount of one Share.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

fEREE

ARER AR B[ BREE B ADE
M—RER201IFNRAIEBBENEERE
REKUERD Bt EFST2EREER
BREANERAAEETMKE R AINEMAE
B(Tw2BIFE  RERNES) RHBER
B HEERTEERERERRENSNK
HTETH ARG - BREAEEERES
SNRLRENEERLBRE (FAREY
AEEVEH SRR (R L B Rt B S AR -

BT R R R AR AT &) [ AR 1 AR E b BB AR
BEFMBEMBEREMIRETHORNDEE
LR A ETEHIB 80,000,000 B (AR
ERMEERITRHH10%) EEERHAY
IEBER 12@ A 8RR - EEBETFERE
BRENE RARAME A MERENEE R
R SR R AR (R ER S - BTN
RITERBRE) METRE T RITMRNEE
LB TERATECEITRME 1% -

IRAESSRENARR - BRREERE
ATEMERTRRERE  BERDNIEER
R BEER 0F - RFEFERHRTE &L
NEHERERENRE LAT  TABRE
WA FATE R E &R R i o

ROBRENZZVANRHAERZZCA(E
RER)RIHUBAES - REARDBR
EMEERAAARAXNEE00ET

TEERMESTSETE  BR-DERTIE
BERTIREE : ()BRXAEARERMER
pRELKLERENZZER(ERRHA)
BB R (i) B R PTE B RERPTRR O R
EERHAMASELEANTFHRDE
TEEERPANSER—RBRHN@EE -

Annual Report £ #§ 2013 25



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Company has granted a total of 15,960,000 share options (restated) to certain eligible
employees under the Share Option Scheme on 7 December 2012, the exercise price of
options granted is HK$0.915 (restated) per share. The options have a term of 3.5 years
commencing from 7 December 2012; or until the early termination of the options in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme, exercisable from 7 December 2014. All the
eligible employees accepted the granted options. For the year ended 3| December 2013,
share-based payment amounted to approximately HK$1.43 million is recognized as the

employee benefit expense.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules
since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012.

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

During the year, the Group had no material litigations and arbitrations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events took place subsequent to 31 December 201 3.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the annual

general meeting.

By order of the Board

Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014

26 ASR Holdings Limited « #3¥ZRER AT

ARRER20NRFENA7HAETAERES
KA 31596000017 (R E) EAKE - BR
BOTEERSRIISHET(LED) - BRE
R A2012F12A788FAHISF R E
ERBEBERESERERLBRERL: A8
BEEBAB04FNA7TERIE - FIERE
BRESEIMELE BRE- HE2013F12
A BLFE  HINEEBTHRNERS
NREERNEEBMR X PHER -

ABRERE

RAREBH - BREADRZARERARE
EEMA B2012F 1 A16BRM MR
AAR—E#H EMRAMITAT IR 20%E

BOIRM 2 RRFEHE

EAFRRARER
REE  ARBEEAFARFHER -

BEMBREE
R2013F 12 A3 BT REESKEIE o

3 L]

AR BHRRACEEERBKESHMEHHIE
% RBREEERER  ENAERLEEE
BT BBERBKESMEBAAELD
AREM ABZERNRRBFEAG LIEZ -

EEEEN

*+E
REREE
&7 2014F38 188



. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Good corporate governance is conducive to enhancing the Group's overall performance
and accountability is essential in modern corporate administration. The Board, which
includes three independent non-executive Directors out of a total of six Directors, is
responsible for setting strategic, management and financial objectives and continuously
observes the principles of good corporate governance and devotes considerable effort to
identifying and formalising best practice to ensure the interests of Shareholders, including

those of minority Shareholders, are protected.

ASR Holdings Limited is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has its shares listing on
the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing Date™). The corporate governance
rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Govemance Code from the Listing
Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised Corporate Governance Code from |
April 2012 until 31 December 2013 respectively, except for the deviations from code

provisions A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the independent non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings. However, Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, independent non-executive Director, was hospitalized and did not attend the

annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 May 201 3.
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THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which currently comprises six members,
consisting of three executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Group and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company's affairs. All Directors take decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.

The Board met four times during the year ended 31 December 2013 for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Details of the attendance records are set

out below:

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEmEE
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BRI
Independent Non-executive Directors

BAFHTES

Mr. Wei Jin Cai WS
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REME L
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AfMEEL

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on

the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The list of all Directors is set out under Corporate Information on page 2 and
the independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate

communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed under Biographies of

Directors and Senior Management on pages 39 to 47.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and control the business operations of the Group.
Decisions made are driven for the best interest of the Shareholders and maximizing the
Shareholders’ wealth. The Directors formulate strategic directions, oversee the operations

and monitor the financial and management performance of the Group as a whole.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10 (1) of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. All the independent non-executive Directors have
the appropriate qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under the Listing Rules. Independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been assessed by the Board and the Board considers that all independent

non-executive Directors are independent as required under the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and shall be subject to

retirement by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company's articles of association, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by

Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of his appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

In compliance with code provision A.6.5, Directors are continually updated on the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices and to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for Directors will be

arranged where necessary.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against the Directors in compliance with code provision Al8. The insurance coverage is

reviewed on an annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements

and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The intemal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of
the Group. The internal auditor reviews and evaluates the control process, monitors any
risk factors on a regular basis, and reports to the audit committee on any findings and

measures to address the variances and identified risks.

During the year, the Board, through the audit committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company. The review covered the
financial reporting and compliance procedures of the Group. The Board also reviewed the
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting

function.
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i
EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report

on pages 48 to 49.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounted to approximately HK$ 1.4 million
(2012: HK$ 1.5 million) and HK$0.3 million (2012: HK$0.2 million) in respect of the annual

audit and non-audit services respectively.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted

on the Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The roles and

functions of the audit committee include the following;

. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the internal auditor or external auditor before submission

to the Board;

. to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the work
performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditor; and

. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system and associated

procedures.
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The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors (namely,
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr. Zhang Xianlin) who possess the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, who is
an independent non-executive Director. None of the members of the audit committee
is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditor. The audit committee has
separate and independent access to the advice and services of the senior management
of the Company, and is able to seek independent professional advice at the Company's

expense upon reasonable request.

The audit committee held four meetings during the year ended 3| December 2013 and
reviewed its revised terms of reference, the Group's annual results and report for the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's interim result and report for the period
ended 30 June 2013, the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the corporate
governance matters, the corporate governance matters, the report of internal auditor
from the management on the Company's internal control and risk management review
and processes, and the re-appointment of the external auditor, subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details of the attendance records

of the audit committee are set out below:

Member

RE

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AMEEL
Mr. Wei Jin Cai WA K&
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL

ERERBE
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Ef: MBS EEREEAEL) REA

e
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HH - BARESIRRBUFNTESAMY
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The

roles and functions of the remuneration committee include the following:

. making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure

and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior management;

. establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate in

deciding his own remuneration; and

. determining annual remuneration package by reference to the performance of the

individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The remuneration committee comprises five members, namely, Dr. Zhang Xianlin, Mr.
Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman
of remuneration committee is Dr. Zhang Xianlin, who is an independent non-executive
Director. Three meetings were held by the remuneration committee during the year
ended 31 December 2013. All members attended the meetings. The remuneration
committee reviewed its revised terms of reference during the meeting. Details of the

attendance records of the remuneration committee members are set out below:

Member

241

Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEELYE
Mr. Wei Jin Cai WS E
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AMEEL
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZREE

The nomination committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The roles BEEERWIIFENAIARLREEES - 17

and functions of the nomination committee include the following; EEEENBE B ETIEE

. reviewing the Board structure; i R EEGLEE

*  monitoring the nomination, appointment and succession planning of Directors; and o HEEEERY ZAREL R

. assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors. * AHMEEIEMITE SR E L o

The nomination committee comprises five members, namely Mr. Wei Jin Cai, Mr. Mak REEZEEOEREKE  IRBIEE &
Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, Dr. Zhang Xianlin and Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, SHEE  BERALE RENFLREM#E
Anthony, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman 1+ KD ABUINTES - RRZEE
of the nomination committee is Mr. Wei Jin Cai, who is an independent non-executive IRABUFNTESRBS K4k - REEE
Director. Three meetings were held by the nomination committee during the year ended FREZ03FNABALFEAGET=

31 December 2013. All members attended the meetings. The nomination committee K& - 2RNECLFESE - REZECE
reviewed its revised terms of reference. Details of the attendance records of the MELEITNBESE - REZEENERERL
nomination committee members are set out below: B EEIIT -

Member Attendance
291 HER
Mr. Wei fin Cai MR K& 33
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEELYE 33
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BERELE 313
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REME L 33
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AfMEEL 313

The nomination procedures are governed by the terms of reference of nomination REABEIAQRRI KRBT IRMAGHIREE
committee which are published on the Company's website and the website of the Stock EeBEHERE -

Exchange.

Annual Report £ #§ 2013 35



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERB|E

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 30 August 2013 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out

below:

. developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees ; and

. reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on
16 January 2012.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholder meetings.
The AGM will be held on 20 May 2014. The notice of AGM was sent to Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM. To promote effective communication,
the Company maintains a website at www.asr.com.hk, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company's financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted. The Board, according to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at
the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the Company voting will be announced on

the Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM") to be

called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to
the Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a
director. The relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies
the despatch of this annual report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to

Shareholders of any future AGM.

Article 88 of the Company's articles of association provides that if a Shareholder duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall
deposit a written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the
nominated candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. In order to ensure
that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
nominated candidate, such notice should be given to the Company within seven days
after the dispatch of the notice of annual general meeting of the Company. Details of
the Shareholders' right to propose a person for election as a Director and the related

procedures are set out on the Company's website at www.asr.com.hk.

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar. Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong at Units 1107-12, lith Floor, Lu Plaza, 2 Wing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of six Directors, including three

executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (R¥R % 4), aged 53, was appointed as our executive Director

on 28 June 201 | and is the chairman of the Board and one of the Founders. He is
responsible for overall business strategy and development and management of our Group
as a whole. Mr. Yu has over 29 years of experience in the aviation industry. From 1983 to
1989, Mr. Yu worked in various management positions with United Airlines. From 1989
to 1990, he worked as the Central Pacific Manager with Trans World Airlines. From 1990
to 2000, he worked as the General Manager to oversee the operations in Greater China
and the North Asia Region with Lauda Air, a member of the Austrian Airlines Group. In
February 2001, Mr. Yu joined AOE Freight as a management employee and became its
shareholder in March 2002. Mr. Yu has been awarded the Sales Award of the Year 1986
by United Airlines. On 12 December 1996, Mr. Yu graduated from the Chinese University

of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (BE&H %), aged 46, was appointed as our executive
Director on 28 June 2011 and is one of the Founders. He was also appointed as the
chief executive officer — logistics of our Company on 7 December 2012, responsible for
the development and management of our Group's non-exclusive sales business. Mr. Mak
has over 22 years of experience in cargo revenue management, product development
and strategic planning. In June 1991, he commenced work with Federal Express as an
account executive, where he was subsequently promoted to Sales Manager and was
responsible for supervising the cargo and express business in Hong Kong and Taiwan. In
October 2000, Mr. Mak joined AOE Freight as a management employee and became its
shareholder in March 2002. On 6 December 1990, Mr. Mak graduated from the University

of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree, majoring in Chemistry.
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Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (B{EB& 5t 4 ), aged 48, was appointed as our executive Director on
28 June 2011 and is one of the Founders. He was also appointed as the chief executive
officer — general sales agent of our Company on 7 December 2012, responsible for the
development and management of our Group's GSA business. Mr. Law has over 27 years
of experience in the air cargo business. From 1986 to 1995, Mr. Law served Japan Airlines
for airport passenger administration, UTL Service Limited (then GSA of Trans World
Airlines) as a sales executive for the cargo and passenger divisions, and Lauda Air in its
cargo department. He started his service with Lauda Air as a cargo manager and was
subsequently promoted to a regional cargo manager. In April 1995, Mr. Law joined Orient
Air (HK) Limited, which was principally engaged in the wholesale of air cargo space from
GSA agreements, as a director. In 2007, Mr. Law joined our Group for the development

of our GSA business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wei Jin Cai (B8 7 £ 4), aged 64, was appointed as our independent non-executive

Director on | July 2011. Mr. Wei has over 45 years of experience in civil aviation. From
April 1969 to March 1970, Mr. Wei worked in the Chengdu branch of the Civil Aviation
Administration of China. In October 1970, Mr. Wei was promoted to work in the
headquarters of the Civil Aviation Administration of China. From August 1985 to March
1993, Mr. Wei acted as the deputy party secretary of the Party Committee of Institution
of the Civil Aviation Administration of China. He was appointed as the party secretary
of Civil Aviation Management Institute of China in March 1993 and as the president in
October 2008. Mr. Wei retired from the Civil Aviation Management Institute of China
in August 2010. Mr. Wei is currently an independent non-executive Director of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited (stock code: 1055), a company which shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is concurrently acting as an independent director of Xiamen
Iport Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 600897), a company which shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He had also been an independent director of Shandong
Airlines Company Limited (stock code: 200152), a company which shares are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange during the period form March 2006 to June 2012. Mr. Wei
graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China majoring in economics and management through distance learning in December

1994. He conducted an in-depth study on the operation and management of civil aviation.

40 ASR Holdings Limited « #3¥ZRER AT

BERLE 4858 2011 F6 A28 AR
RWITEZRABIMAZ — BEELR20012
FNATABZAARARRTHER - BIHE
REER  BEREREEASENEHER
BER BLABR U FMEEEEBLR -
1986 FE 1995F » BELGRAAMERT]
(Japan Airlines)(BEMBREER) REAR
PR B CRIKMZE (Trans World Airlines) & B &)
BHERE)(TEERTENHELL) 14
HAMZE (Lauda AR (EBREEZPI TR -
BEERBEOMMET (Lauda Ain) RITEERL
B 2REARRHEERLE  BEER 1995
FLAMARTMEERARLEES &L
AMTEERAREBHERERENTER
il o BRER2007FMAREE  BEERK
MEBHEREER -

BUEHTES
BMEBARE 6450 R20IIF7RIBEERFE
REVFHTES - BAEBRSFRMIME
L5 BEERI99F4AZ 197053 AER
#¢IE%% ERKEERRB - B I970F 10
CREEHATTERARERGESIE -
%ﬂ%S@SHiJ%BEBH’%ﬁ%ﬁJE*H
ERMERKBEZEIZERL - N I1993F3 7
BALEZARTERMERRTEREZE
i WHR2008F 10 A Ef& o BEER 2010
FEARNTERMEERBERRNK - RELE
BABMIAMEMRATEEAMERHERD
AR - 1055) B FFEMITES - BEE
R ZELEELEZHM EMAREMBRMR
ZERMDER QA (RMHAR - 600897)BLE
F o HR2006F3AE2012F6 AL A RYIE
EX S LEMARILRMAEROERAE (RGO
5% - 200152) BUES - RI994F 127 #
FENRBEVAZBERFPHPRER - FEE
BERZE HERAMTECEERRAAM

go

?Lo



. o BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Zhang Xianlin (REME L), aged 60, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on | October 201 1. Dr. Zhang has over 35 years of experience in the
areas of accounting and management and in the aviation industry. Dr. Zhang graduated
from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
majoring in economics and management through distance leaming in December 1997. He
then obtained from Huazhong University of Science and Technology a Master's Degree in
Business Administration and a Doctoral Degree in Management in December 1998 and
December 2004 respectively. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. During the period from March 1978 to December 1996,
he served in various positions including senior management positions in the Civil Aviation
Administration of China. Between December 1996 and April 2009, Dr. Zhang had held
various senior managerial positions for several Hong Kong and PRC companies, including
the chairman of the board of supervisors in Air Macau Company Limited, the general
manager in China National Aviation Company Limited, a director in Hong Kong Dragon
Airlines Limited and the chairman of the board of supervisors in Air China Limited (stock
code: 753) and the chairman of the board of Directors of HNA Group (Hong Kong) Co,
Limited. Dr. Zhang had also been a non-executive Director of Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited (stock code: 293) during the period from August 1997 to October 2006. He is
currently an independent non-executive Director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited

(stock code: 899), a company which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (I# =18 =), aged 58, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on | October 201 1. Dr. Tyen has over 36 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, management and company secretarial practice. He is currently
an independent director of Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc. (formerly known as Elixir
Gaming Technologies, Inc.) (stock code: EGT), a company which shares are listed on
the New York Stock Exchange and Alpha Peak Leisure Inc, a company which shares are
listed on the Canada TSX Venture Exchange (stock code: AAP.P) and an independent
non-executive Director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102) and Melco
International Development Limited (stock code: 200), both of which shares are listed on

the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Tyen was a director of Show8 Cyber Media Limited (“Show8"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong prior to its dissolution as a result of creditors’ voluntary
liquidation commenced on 20 January 2001. Show8 was dissolved in July 2003. Before its
liquidation, Show8 was an Internet content provider. Due to the unfavourable economic
condition at that time and the burst of the Internet bubble in year 2000 and the significant
decline in business activities in the Intemet sector, Show8 was unable to overcome its
financial difficutty and was then put into liquidation in January 2001. Dr. Tyen confirmed
that he was not involved in the dissolution of Show8 and is not aware of any liability as
a result of the dissolution of Show8. He is also not aware of any outstanding claim from
the creditors of Show8 after the dissolution of the company. In the three years preceding
the date of this annual report, Dr. Tyen was also an independent non-executive Director
of Value Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code: 821) and Recruit Holdings Limited
(stock code: 550), both of which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tyen obtained a Doctoral degree in Philosophy and a Master's degree in Business
Administration on 10 December 1998 and 30 October 1986 respectively, both from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is currently a practicing certified

public accountant in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

business.

Mr. Ritola, Jouni Juhani, aged 34, is a director of ASR Europe and the beneficial owner
of 40% shareholding in ASR Europe. Mr. Ritola joined our Group on |5 September 2010
and was responsible for overseeing our operations in Europe and Asia. He has over 9
years of experience in project management and the logistics industry. On |7 December
2007 he joined Project Expeditors Limited (formerly known as Polar Logistics Hong
Kong Limited), a project logistics company as a shareholder and director, in which he
was responsible for leading its logistics team and managing its the business operations in
Hong Kong, China, Korea and Japan. On 4 December 2009, Mr. Ritola became the sole
shareholder of Project Expeditors Limited and since then operated it as a sole owner. Mr.
Ritola graduated from the University of Jyvdskyld with a Master of Science in Economics

and Business Administration.
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Mr. Wong Kin Yan, Michael (BE1=54), aged 52, is the Director of Freight and Group
Performance Management. Mr. Wong joined our Group on 5 July 2010.

Mr. Wong has over 33 years of experience in the airlines and cargo industries. Since
1981, Mr. Wong worked as a traffic officer for Thai Airways International Limited and
was responsible for daily operations tasks. He was then promoted to traffic supervisor in
1987 and was responsible for overseeing the daily operations at the airport office of Thai
Airways International Limited. He was then promoted to senior traffic supervisor who was
responsible for handling administrative tasks in the airport office such as staff rostering,
training, annual leave approval, coordination/liaison with various service providers and
government authorities. Mr. Wong left Thai Airways International Limited and joined
Emirates Airlines in 1991, where he worked as the senior station supervisor and was
responsible for handling both operational and administrative tasks in the airport office
of Emirates Airlines. Mr. Wong left Emirates Airlines and joined Scandinavian Airlines in
1992, where he worked as the duty station manager and was responsible for handling
both operational and administrative tasks in the airport office of Scandinavian Airlines. At
the same time, Mr. Wong also acted as the deputy station manager at the airport office
of Scandinavian Airlines when the station manager was away from the station. From
September 1993 to January 2000, Mr. Wong worked initially as a duty airport services
manager for Hong Kong Intemational Airport Services Limited and was promoted as the
airport service manager in May 1994 who was responsible for the provision of ramp and
cargo services. He was then transferred to work in the “Planning & Standards” division in
1999. From January 2000 to April 2001, Mr. Wong worked as a terminal service manager
for AHK Air Hong Kong Limited. From July 2001 to February 2003, he worked as a
manager in respect of operations procedure for Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation.
From March 2003 to January 2007, Mr. Wong worked as a service manager for KLM Royal
Dutch Airlines. During his employment with KLM Royal Dutch Airlines, he was seconded
to its Beijing office for about two years. In February 2007, Mr. Wong joined Hong Kong
Dragon Airlines Limited as a security manager. He was then intemally transferred to Hong
Kong Airport Services Limited and worked as a passenger service manager with effect
from November 2008 and up to June 2010.
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In November 1995, Mr. Wong completed the “Station Ground Handling Management”
training course undertaken by IATA which was intended for airline station and ground
handling managers. In September 2001, he completed the Joint DMS program undertaken
by the Hong Kong Management Association and Lingnan University, thus obtaining a
Diploma in Management Studies. Mr. Wong attended and completed the “Safety Audit
and Lead Auditor Course” undertaken by Aviation Consulting & Training Pty Ltd. and
the “Security Quality Control” course undertaken by IATA in April 2007 and May 2007

respectively.

Ms. Ng Yee Ming, Canny (R#KB/MH), aged 39, is the director of finance and
administration. She has over 16 years of experience in the areas of accounting, taxation,
finance and auditing. Prior to joining our Group as an accounting supervisor on |7
November 2000, Ms. Ng worked in a CPA firm from March 1998 to January 1999. From
April 1999 to July 2000, Ms. Ng worked in various positions at DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Property Management Limited. From July 2000 to October 2000, Ms. Ng worked for New
World TMT Limited (formerly known as New World Infrastructure Limited), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 7). Ms.
Ng graduated from the University of Technology, Sydney with a Bachelor of Business
degree in October 1997. She was admitted as a member of CPA Australia in December
1997 and advanced to the status of Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia in
July 2002.

Mr. Fok Kam Man, Billy (B #8 X 5 4), aged 48, is the director of GSA. Mr. Fok has over
27 years of experience in the aviation industry. Prior to joining our Group on 2 February
2009, Mr. Fok had worked as the passenger traffic agent and then a lead agent in the
passenger traffic section of Japan Airlines from October 1987 to July 1993. From July 1993
to January 1996, Mr. Fok worked as a junior dealer for Emperor Management Services
(Overseas) Limited. From February 1996 to October 2008, Mr. Fok worked initially as
a passenger services supervisor for Menzies Macau Airport Services Limited and was
promoted to the position of senior duty manager. Mr. Fok graduated from the School
of Continuing Studies, the Macau University of Science and Technology with a degree of

Bachelor of International Tourism Management.
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Mr. Lee Wai Man, Tom (Z&3 % %), aged 42, is the general manager for the air freight
and operations of our Group. Mr. Lee has over with 20 years of experience in the logistics
industry. Prior to joining our Group on 16 June 1997, he had worked for different freight
forwarding companies. After joining our Group, he has served various positions including
operations supervisor, assistant operations manager, consolidation manager and assistant
general manager. He was promoted to his current position in 2008. Mr. Lee completed a

Dangerous Goods Diploma which was undertaken by IATA and Cathay Pacific in 2003.

Mr. Liu Qi (BI& 5 4), aged 32, is the regional sales manager of our South China
operations. Mr. Liu joined our Group on | August 2005 and has over 8 years of
experience with the logistics industry. After joining our Group, he has served various
positions including the cargo salesman and the cargo sales manager. He was promoted to
his current position in 2012. He graduated from Guangzhou University with a Bachelor

degree of hospitality management in June 2005.

Ms. Feng Qian Qing, Connie (ISfEM/ME), aged 45, is the manager for finance and
administration of our South China operations and our PRC internal compliance officer.
Ms. Feng has over |8 years of experience in the areas of accounting and finance. Prior to
joining our Group as an accounts officer on | November 2005, Ms. Feng worked as an
accounts officer for the Guangzhou branch office of a shipping company from November
1994 to June 1997. From November 2000 to August 2005, she worked as the chief
accounts officer for Guangzhou Chengtong Investment Consultant Limited. After joining
our Group in September 2005, she was promoted as the assistant finance manager
for our South China operations, stationing at the Guangzhou branch of AOE Freight
(Shenzhen). In October 2008, she was further promoted as the manager for finance
and administration of our South China operations. Ms. Feng graduated from Guangzhou
Institute of Technology (formerly known as the Guangzhou Worker Amateur University)

with a diploma in accounting in July 2001.
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. o BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

o - oy e
M- W
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Hoo (BBZ5t4), aged 52, was appointed as the company secretary of our
Company on 10 November 2011 to serve our Company on a part-time basis. Mr.
Cheng obtained a bachelor of laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1987.
He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1990 and in England and Wales in 1995.
Mr. Cheng has over 23 years experience in the practice of law. He is a co-founder and
partner of CWL Partners in association with Nixon Peabody LLP and Hylands Law
Firm where he practises corporate and commercial law. Currently, he is not acting as a

company secretary of any listed companies other than our Company.

Mr. Ho Chi Keung (fZ&#8 5 &), aged 42, was the head of corporate services of the
Group. He joined the Group as the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Manager
between March 2012 and March 2013. Mr. Ho has over 16 years of solid financial and
internal auditing experience with several US Fortune 500 multinationals, Hong Kong
listed financial institutions in the commercial retail banking, general and life insurance, and
the local governmental and non-profit making organisations in the public entertainment
and transportation within the territories. He had also been the Company Secretary
cum Internal Audit Manager for a well-established Hong Kong listed corporation in the
property development and investment, manufacturing and trading of plastics bags, stock

broking and finance, and investment in securities.

Mr. Ho graduated form Hong Kong Polytechnic Universtiy with a Bachelor's degree in
Accountancy. He is also a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. Mr. Ho has resigned from our Group with effect from | October 2013.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B ®E

_E
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASR HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ASR Holdings Limited (the
“Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") set out on pages 50 to |51,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2013,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

As at 3| December 2013
R2013F 128318

2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 2 TRz TR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment v E R Y S 5 7,184 8,108
Goodwil BE 6 557 557
Investment in an associated company R—RBE R ZRE 18(a) | —
Loan to an associated company m)— R A RIEL 2 B 18(b) 3,600 —
Prepayment and other receivables T RIE S AL FE Wk || 3,741 =
Long-term deposits RkiRe [l 1,441 352
Deferred income tax assets BEMGEHAE 9 550 923
17,074 9,940
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables O ) e 10 133,592 103,829
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BANFIE - Be REMERFIE [l 6,952 10,295
Other current assets HineEE 1,930 2910
Pledged deposits BEREK 12 26,882 24,885
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEEY 12 252,534 192,935
421,890 334,854
Total assets BnEE 438,964 344,794
EQUITY Ei
Share capital PR A 13 4,000 4,000
Reserves Ei 14 294,869 235,640
298,869 239,640
Non-controlling interests RS 1,269 | 641
Total equity MR 300,138 241,281
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HnEEERRER

As at 31 December 2013
R2013F 128318

2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Fiasr TAERT TAT
LIABILITIES =0
Non-current liabilities L =K
Finance lease liabilities MEREARE 17 — 7
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFEHEE 9 1,479 1,362
1,479 [,369
Current liabilities nREBEE
Trade payables B I EMNFIE 15 89,619 68,222
Other payables and accruals Hih e HE R EER 16 32,127 20,065
Finance lease liabilities MEREERE 17 7 7
Current income tax payable EHMENAR 15,594 13,850
137,347 102,144
Total liabilities HEE 138,826 103,513
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 438,964 344,794
Net current assets RBEEFE 284,543 232,710
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 301,617 242,650

The notes on pages 58 to |51

statements.

58 151 AWM AR ERAMBRRNA

are an integral part of these consolidated financial £
FRER S o

The financial statements on pages 50 to 151 were approved for issue by the Board of F50FE 151 ENHBRREN 2014638181

Directors on 18 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf, REFSRAETE  THUTREEE -
Director Director
3 X
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BALANCE SHEET
EEREX

As at 31 December 2013
R2013F 128318

2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BT THER FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RETBARIRIRE 7 126,764 125,339
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE B FE W R0 [ 237,662 77,008
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEED 12 51,516 24,868
Current assets RBEE 289,178 101,876
Total assets HWEE 415,942 227215
EQUITY &
Share capital BRA 13 4,000 4,000
Reserves [ 14 361,666 222956
Total equity MR 365,666 226956
LIABILITY =L
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals Hih B R EER 16 50,276 259
Total liabilities meE 50,276 259
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 415,942 227215
Net current assets RBEEFE 238,902 101,617
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 365,666 226,956
The notes on pages 58 to |51 are an integral part of these financial statements. F58% |5 BN AZSHBHRR AN

o

&

FS0EISI BB B RRE N2014F37 18
BAREZSH AT  UHNATREES -

These financial statements on pages 50 to 5| were approved for issue by the Board of

Directors on 8 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.

Director Director

B B
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o CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

=k SEREWER
i d For the year ended 3| December 2013
HZEWBFNANBLFE
2013 2012
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Pt TR TERT
Revenue Yoz 19 806,713 674,197
Cost of sales HERKA 21 (592,002) (489,298)
Gross profit e 214,711 184,899
Other losses, net HitnEE - F8E 20 (1,346) (855)
Other income Hi A 20 — 250
Administrative expenses THAX 21 (102,836) (77,856)
Operating profit & 110,529 106,438
Finance income AMEKA 24 559 504
Finance costs BB R 24 ) G
Finance income, net BMERA - FE 24 557 501
Profit before income tax BR PRAE B AR A 111,086 106,939
Income tax expense FiEHAX 25 (18,380) (16,863)
Profit for the year EREA 92,706 90,076
Other comprehensive income: Hira WA
ltems that have been reclassified or may be EEABEAAJEESEE
reclassified to profit of loss BwlHA
Recycling of revaluation reserve upon disposal &R ENESRMEER
of available-for-sale financial assets BftEBER = (34)
Currency translation differences ] 1,301 643
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALEERE 94,007 90,685
Profit attributable to: AT B IEREE RS
— Equity holders of the Company —ARAERFAA 93,050 89,943
— Non-controlling interests — R (344) 133
92,706 90,076
Total comprehensive income attributable to: WTEBEREGEMALE -
~ Equity holders of the Company —KRRAERFAA 94,375 90,552
— Non-controlling interests — RS (368) 133
94,007 90,685
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EHEWER

For the year ended 3| December 2013
BEWBFA3NBLFE

2013 2012
Note HK Cents HK Cents
&t AL 7l
(Restated)
(E51)
Earnings per share for profit attributable to ARAIEE A AEE RN
equity holders of the Company BREM
— Basic —&R 27(a) 11.63 [1.36
— Diluted —#58 27(b) [1.63 [1.36
The notes on pages 58 to |51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F58Z |51 BN AZERAMERRNA
statements. R En o
2013 2012
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s TR TR
Dividends BE 28 156,800 27,200
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 3| December 2013
HZEWBFNANBLFE

Attributable to eqity holders of the Company

KATREREARE
Share-
based
payment
Statutory  reserve Non-
andlegl  URA controlling
Share Sare  Captal  Exchange  reserves  AER Retained interests Total
apil  premium  reserve  reseves  AER WA Sbtonl  eamnings Toul  FER equity
Ba RBEE ERER ENRE SRR NEE 0 REER &% BR 48R
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK§000  HKS000
Tén TEn TEn TEr TEn TEr  TEr  TEn  FEr  TER TEn
Bdance at | anuary 2013 ROBEIRIBEE 400 7% elel 2269 1719 94 96808 I8 2960 g4l 4181
Comprehensive income el
Proft for the year ERmER - - - - - - = %00 93050 (344 90706
Other comprehensive income R ARA
Cumency translation differences EXER - - - 1325 - = 1325 - 1325 (4) 1,301
Total comprehensive income Gal\gg - - - 1,325 - - 135 93050 94375 (368) 94007
Transactions with owners BEEANRE
Dividends RE - - - - - - = (36400 (36400 = (36400
Acquistion of a subsidiry YE-BHBAH = = = = = = = = = 846 846
Transfer to statutory reserve BREETRE - - - - 956 - 956 (956) - - -
Partial disposal of a subsicry to HEHAMBRR
non-controling interest THaRER - - 4 - - - 4 - 4 5 4
Acquistion of addiiondlinerestna~ [ZERR R ER IS
subsidary from non-controlinginterest B A RAY
HfpiEs - = 1) = = = ) = ) e (1069)
Share-based payment HRGEERA - - - - - 1425 1425 - 1425 - 425
Totaltransactions vith owners EEEANR LT - = (7) = 956 145 2200 (736 (3514 @ 35150
Balance at 31 December 2013 RNBENAIRES 400 7255 5990 3594 2875 [519 90343 208526 298869 1269 300,138
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 3| December 2013

BZE0BF12A3IBILERE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
LSNE SN

Avallble
for-sale Share
financial ~ -based

assets  payment

Statutory revaluation  reserve Non-
andlegd  resene  BRD controling
e S Coptd Behange  resenes AERRE  BER Retained Interests Total

apidl premim  resene  reenes  AER SBAE  HRR bt emng To  EBR  equty
B KOEE AARE EARE SRR EGMRE  oEE N REEN Bt BE g8E
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO00  HKFOO0  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HK000  HKFOOO  HKF000  HK$000
TRt Thr TEn TEn TR Thr TEr TEn TEn TR TEr  ThEn

Bance at | anuary 01 R0NFI A1 RER 100 - slsl 186 L% # — 94 103905 1099 298 11583
Comprehensive income el
Proft for the year ERmER - - - - - - - - M 89 133 %007
Other comprehensive income HfpalA
Cumency translation differences EXER - - - 643 - - - 643 - 643 - 643
Recycling of revaluation reserve hEMHLE

upon disposal of avallable-for- SMEEK

sale financial assts EfiRRER - - - - - (39 - (39 - (34 - (34
Total comprehensive income FaliAEg - - - M - (34 - Bm W 133 90685
Transactions with owners BEEANRE
Dividends RE - - - - - - - — (404000 (40400)  (1400) (41.800)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETRE - - - - 66 - - b6 (616) - - -
Alotment of shares RER( 1000 92000 - - - - = 93000 = 93000 = 93000
Capialisation issue AXeEf 2900 (2%0) - - - - - - - - - -
Share isuance cost BhRfaA - (65— — — — —(l6s%) = (65%)  —  (165%)
Share-ased payment R BRI - - = = = = % % = % = %
Totaltransactions vith owners EEEANR LT 3900 72565 = = 6l = % TITS @018 1% (1400) 34759
Balance at 31 December 2012 RONENRAIIBES 400 7565 46 09 179 - 9 G688 152832 e ledl MM

The notes on pages 58 to |51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F58ZE 15| BENMERZEHRE M BRENA
statements. BE S o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

i o
. FERSHEBR
I d For the year ended 3| December 2013
HZEWBFNANBLFE
2013 2012
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt TER TAET
Operating activities: ReED
Cash generated from operations EEEMERS 29(a) 119,697 80,225
Income tax paid ERPAEH (17,260) (22510)
Net cash generated from operating activities REFBRBREFH 102,437 57,715
Investing activities: REEE :
Cash acquired in acquisition of subsidiaries, W B AR - MRENKER
net of consideration paid 8 e 31 1,694 43|
Investment in an associated company R—RBERANERE 18(a) (N —
Dividend received ) — 26
Interest received RGNS, 559 515
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERRE 5 (1,589) (2,890)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BE RRE
and equipment HIFT13 508 29(b) 21 58
Prepayments for non-current assets FREEEMNTENFE (3,741) —
Loan to an associated company ) — B A RE 2 B 18(b) (3,600) =
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HETHLESHMEE
financial assets KPS SR = 7,181
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAAEFABGEREE
at fair value through profit or loss HIFT13 508 — 1,027
Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary REEZE Il
from non-controlling interest N REPNGIE R eh - 7(ii)(b) (1,068) —
Proceeds from partial disposal of a subsidiary HEBHHBRA
to non-controlling interest TR R E R A PTS 5B 7(ii)(a) 47 =
Net cash (used in)/generated from ®BBEH(FA),/Ff5
investing activities ReFa (7,678) 6,348
Financing activities: MEES
Repayment of obligations under finance lease BERMBEHERE @) (6)
Capital contribution iE — 76,465
Interest paid RESENSE ) G
Dividend paid BERRE (36,400) (41,800)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE(FA)/ 5
financing activities ReFH (36,409) 34,656
Increase in cash and cash equivalents RERREZEMEM 58,350 98,719
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ F#13R & KIREZEY 192,935 93,560
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents Re kR SEBMEL e 1,249 656
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FERAE LB EEY 12 252,534 192,935

The notes on pages 58 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F58%F 5| BN AZER AR RENA
N

statements. ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁj o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

58

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

ASR Holdings Limited (the “Company") was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
28 June 201 | as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is 3rd Floor, Queensgate House, |13 South
Church Street, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman, KY I-1002 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries (together,
the "Group") are principally engaged in the provision of air freight service in the

wholesale market.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$) unless

otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors

on 18 March 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.|  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical

cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont d)

(i) New standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretation
effective in 2013 but have no significant impacts or are not relevant to

the Group
e HKAS 9 (201 ) “Employee Benefits"

e HKAS27 (2011) "Separate Financial Statements”

e HKAS 28 (2011) “Investments in Associates and Joint

Ventures”

*  HKFRS | (Amendment) “Government Loans”

*  HKFRS 7 (Amendment) “Disclosures — Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities”

o HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
*  HKFRS || “Joint Arrangements”

o HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5B R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont d)

(i) New standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretation
effective in 2013 but have no significant impacts or are not relevant to
the Group (Contd)

° HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurements”

e HK(FRIC)-Int 20 “Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine”

e HKFRS 10, HKFRS I'| and HKFRS 12 (Amendments)
“Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and

Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance”

*  Annual Improvements Project HKAS | “Annual Improvements
2009-201 | Cycle Amendment “Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income™

60 ASR Holdings Limited * #3¥ZRERA T

2

TESHBRMESE)
2 GEREXEE)
() FEEUEELEAZEY

BREEFEGK 2013 F%E
HAIFER) - HHFEAH
LHEV &6

BEBFBREELE
I3[ AR EEZ]

B (BRMBRER
BZEg) 2EZ

WHMBERFEESE
EEF B A RIREAK K |

BEEMBREENE
105 - BB BRE
ERE I FREBH
BREERENR
CHESIE =¥
C AERHRRAE
HEBNOERRE
BERES ]

EREGHERE %
F 2 2 B B12009
FERWIFRBFE
o[ iR & AR
BHZ®IETA]



2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

] -] b N >
) B3GR
. F W
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEEHEESEE)
2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont d) 21 REEE(E)
(i) New standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretation (i) AEEIEEERGE R ER

have been issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
| January 2013 and have not been early adopted by the Group

HKAS 19 (201 ) (Amendment)
BBERERFE 1957
0114F) (fERTA)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
BB EREIR(EFTE)

HKAS 36 (Amendment)
BR G EAFECRIEFT )
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BB G ERIE9RIEITA)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

BRMBERELEFETH R

BB MELEFEIRIERTA)

HKFRS 9
BRMBREEAFER
HKFRS 14

BEMBRELERF 1457

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendments)
BAMBRE EAE 105 -
BRMBRERAE 1251
R R
Q01 1) (fEETA)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21
EEERMBREREREY)
—REE2I%
Annual Improvements Project

FRIEER

Annual Improvements Project

FEUERA

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
ERENETE - BEHR

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

BHTREERSBAR

Recoverable Amount Disclosures For
Non-Financial Assets

FeWEEZIEKRERRE

Novation of Derivatives And Continuation

of Hedge Accounting
MTETAZBE R Est 2 iTE

Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures

SR B BB R R
Financial Instruments
SRTH

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
EERTRE

Investment Entities

REER

Annual Improvements 2012

012F FEHUGE

Annual Improvements 2013

201 3FFEHUGE

2013 1 A 1 B85 B EE
KEXBFER - HHERIREFT
ARZE

Effective for annual

periods beginning on

or after

RTIF AR 2%

BRNEE

HImMEXK

| July 2014
201457818

| January 2014
2014F 1818

| January 2014

201451 AR
| January 2014

2014F 1A 1H

| January 2015
20I15F AR

Undetermined

e
KREE

| January 2016
2016F1A1R

| January 2014

20141 A 1H

| January 2014
201451 AR

| July 2014
20147818

| July 2014
20147818
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

2

62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

The Group is assessing the impact of these new standards, amendments
to existing standards and interpretation. The Group will apply these new
standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretation when they

are effective in the respective annual periods.

2.2  Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred

to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all its subsidiaries as at 3| December.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

(i) Subsidiaries

@

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interests in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests” proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

B AR RE

2 FESHBERMEE)
22 f#HERE(E)

() WEAF

@

XBEH

AEBRMEEE
ERFEBRFAR-
St — B A A
FEENRENLE
BRBREE FME
TRERABITRE
MAREE - BR
REBRIARER
BRI B EE
FEENAAEE-
WNE A 6 T
HO A 8P & E % P A
EMNBRELRIARERE
TSR ERKER
MDA BEEFE -
AEEREZANER
£ DRABENLFE
TR 5 PR A 1R KR
K EERN A BAE
EFENLY - BR
I BER 7 B0 (L 1] 3F
RS o

W BB AN
B -

Annual Report £ % 2013 63



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 35 B BT RE

2

64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

22

Consolidation (Cont d)

()

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

@

Business combinations (Cont d)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such

remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7

2

TESHBRMESE)
22 HEEA(E)
() HEAA(E)
(a) FEEOHE)

fin K75 & 6 7 B B
17 YEB 77 1 S A A
FEE S BB R I
BEENRRESEMN
AAERKEERNR
R{EE: ARSI
EEAMMEMKER
BRONBEARER -

SEREENIMR
AREENEERR
ARBEER HE
R—EEERARN
FEREATERE
28 BLERELSS
T 24 Bl E395% 19 #
T RNEE AR
ERABEMES KA
23 HERAERN
HAREBHAEH
B MEBRBREER
ER AR

=+



L)

WM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

(i)  Subsidiaries (Contd)

@

Business combinations (Cont d)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to

conform with the group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

2

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

(i)  Subsidiaries (Contd)

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change

of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that
is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

()

(i)

Subsidiaries (Contd)

©

Disposal of subsidianies

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.

Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results

of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

22

23

Consolidation (Cont d)
(i) Separate financial statements (Contd)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets including

goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment in associates

includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

23

Associates (Cont d)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using

equity method' in the statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

24  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors that makes strategic decisions.

2.5  Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is

the Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income within “other losses, net".
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5  Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(i)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

J assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

S income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive

income are translated at average exchange rates; and

J all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

25

Foreign currency translation (Cont d)

(iv)

Disposal of forejgn operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's
ownership interest in associates or jointly controlled entities that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

26

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged

to profit or loss during the years in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The annual

rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within “other losses, net”, in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

27

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of

the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUEs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for interal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the

operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment

is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

28

2.9

Impairment of investment in a subsidiary, an associated company and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification

of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.9  Financial assets (Contd)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except amounts that are settled or expected
to be settled more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

These are classified as non-current assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current assets unless investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investment within |2 months of the

end of the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

29

2.10

Financial assets (Contd)

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method

and available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group

of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FESHEESEE)
2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Cont d) 210 SWEERMEE)
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group REBENE R EEFAL—
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency HEBAELREMBRE B
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter FHEREENEHAE  BHAR
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data Bl ESCETHM I BEAR,
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash NRBFBREBET AT ARRE
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with ERBAGENRD PIMERD
defaults. BAHREBENERERIEER R
WE -
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M5B R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEEHEESEE)
210 SRMEEREE)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value

using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale assets, in the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidenced that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments

are not reversed through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

211

2.12

2.13

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities

of three months or less, net of pledged deposits.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown

in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.14

2.15

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are

presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the other

financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-
payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to

which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.16

217

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company, its subsidiaries and an associated
company operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Cont d)

(i)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Cont d)

(i)

(i)

Deferred income tax (Contd)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an

intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18 Employee benefits

()

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The pension plans are generally funded by payments from
employees and by the relevant group companies. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contribution if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The Group has no

further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR RE

) FESTERRHBERE)

218 EEREF
() BUREZEMF
AEE2 AL EE BN
2 AEMBE-—RABY
CREABEESHA - BRIK
TR EMEEE —RAESR
REBEERAMELER -
%ﬁmﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬂWQ

?%iﬁlmf mz
%@ﬂﬁiﬁﬁéiﬁ%ﬁ
EERRAHREBES
iR B 8 RIS HE
Mo NEEYEEHE—F
HRHEEIHEERE - &
SEELHRE - DEE

SRREE

HREI RN RERAE

BREMAX - AREFRE
B R IR RN TR B
BRAREE °

Annual Report £ % 2013 85



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

2

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18 Employee benefits (Cont d)

(i)

(i)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company's shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet

date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5B R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEEHEESEE)

2.19 Share-based payments 219 URGBRAEROER

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to

the fair value of the options granted:

(i) including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's

share price);

(i) excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and

remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

(iily  including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the

requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the

specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between

service commencement period and grant date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.19

2.20

Share-based payments (Cont d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont d)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment

to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are

credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are

not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at present value of the expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

221

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable

from provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.

Revenue is shown, net of retumns, rebates and discounts and is recognised as

follows:

@)

®)

(©

Air frejght service fee income

Air freight service fee income is recognised when the air freight
services are provided, the timing of which usually coincides with the
departure date. This service fee income will be either recognised at
gross or net depending on the arrangement with airlines, integrated

carriers and freight forwarders.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables

are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

222

2.23

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessors) are

charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property,
plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the

leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current or non-current liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease

term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders of the entities is recognised as a liability
in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are

approved by the shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Directors of
the Company. The Directors provide principles for overall risk management,

as well as policies covering specific areas.

(a)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB™) and United States dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised

assets and liabilities.

During the year, the Group had not hedged its foreign
exchange risk because the exposure, after netting off the assets

and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is not significant.

As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group considers that the
foreign exchange risk arising from transactions in USD is not

significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont d) 3 BBEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont d) 3.1 BEEREZR(E)
(a)  Market risk (Contd) @) HTEERE)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Contd) () PEmEEE)

As at 31 December 2013, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against the HK$ with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$624,000 (2012: HK$19,000) lower/higher
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of RMB-denominated trade and other payables, offset by trade

and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

(i) Interest rate risk (ii)

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, except
for cash and bank balances as disclosed in Note |2, the
Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially

independent of changes in market interest rates.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7

R2013F 128318
WARMEATHE
/B E% M A
Hp S Emis g
Bl AR PGB A&
MR DB A
62400078 7L (2012
190008 7T) ¥EH
RIAE AR E
)8 5 & HE fth & 55K
BRE S K EMER
HREARRERR®
ZEYEHATSIHE
SIEE W

FIF a7
AR BB O R

RFIZRE kB E
ZEMMN TEEKX
ATRBE MAKHE
FAR K LR E R
BEAREAZMIHH
ERPUYE -



3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

()

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions, loan to an associated company as well as credit exposures
to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed

transactions. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

For banks and financial institutions, only independent parties with high

credit rating are accepted.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The existing
debtors have no significant defaults in the past. The Group's historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables falls within
the recorded allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that

adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been made.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, loan to an
associated company, deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to financial assets.

Management makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of
those receivables and deposits, and is of the opinion that adequate

provision for receivables with significant credit risk has been made.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3 BBEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont d) 3. BEBREREER(E)
(c)  Liquidity risk (c) mEBELEE
The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining sufficient AEEFEBEREHNRE
cash and cash equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash gefenEnie ke
flow and adequate banking facilities. As at 31 December 2013, trade FEMARRHHORITRE
and other payables had contractual maturity within 12 months from EHRBE SRR - K203
the balance sheet date. Obligations under a finance lease due after |2 FNANB - BHREM
months are not significant. ERNFENSOIEMBER
RERET 12EARN - &
HEBER 2ER%RIS
BYTEK-
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant TREIBREREER
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance Epis E’Jﬂﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁ$/§l
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed HEIRENNEREEN
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances A TREBNEERE
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of RNIERRBRERE - ARG
discounting is not significant. BOYZEUTEK ' 12{8A
AEIBEEREN AR A
#h o
At 3| December 2013
R2013512A31H
Less than Between Between
| year | to2years 2tob5 years Total
£ R | E26F 2E5F st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET  FER  FER TR
Trade payables B HRMNRIE 89,619 — — 89,619
Other payables and accruals Eft & 1 508 Rk FE5+ B 30,952 = = 30,952
Finance lease liabilities MEHERRE 7 _ — 7
120,578 — — 120,578

94 ASR Holdings Limited * #3¥ZRERA T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

] -] ps N =
) B 76 % 4 5
. ]
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont d) 3 BBEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd) 3.1 BEERERE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Cont'd) () HEHELERE)
At 31 December 2012
2012124315
Less than Between Between
| year | to2years  2to 5 years Total
IR s 2ES5F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET TET
Trade payables B EMNFIE 68,222 — — 68,222
Other payables and accruals E ft fE 5018 [k FE 51 & F 19,193 — — 19,193
Finance lease liabilities REHEAR 7 7 — 14
87,422 7 — 87,429
32  Capital risk management 32 BXRERER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's AEENESERBEREERER
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for SEERELE  UARERMRD
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal WmEABHMERFAE ARERNE -
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. R G RFRENEREBAREE
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the REFIARENERE  RAEEA
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retumn capital to shareholders, or REHBRN TREMRE « MR
sell assets to reduce debt. REREMER - HHEEENRD
B
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.2 Capital risk management (Cont d)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total liabilities-to-total assets
ratio. The total liabilities-to-total assets ratio as at 3| December 2013 and

2012 were as follows:

3

REEREE(E)

3.2

BEXEBEE(E)

AEERRARBHAEENL X
B AR o PA2013F K 2012F 12
A3IB BERHEBENL X
JUENE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FET
Total liabilities BEE 138,826 103,513
Total assets BEE 438,964 344,794
Ratio [i:S 32% 30%
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 DAEEMSE

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and liabilities, including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade payables,
accruals and other payables and finance lease liabilities, approximate their fair

values due to their short-term maturities.

The carrying amount of the non-current portion of loan to an associated
company was a reasonable approximation of its fair value after considering

the discounting effect.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7
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] -]

] 1
H tl_‘

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements often requires the use of judgement to

select specific accounting methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting

accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.

@)

(b)

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables, including loan to
an associated company, based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectable. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for the
impairment of receivable is recognised in the year in which such estimates

have been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
would impact the current income tax and deferred income tax provisions in

the period in which such determination is made.

4
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B 5 E B It
5  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP 5 UM% BERFRE-FKE
Leasehold Fumniture
improve- and Office  Computer Motor
ments fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HERE GMREE PHARE SHEE AE st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKFO00  HK$000
THET TET THT TET TET THET
At | January 2012 B201&1AIR
Cost A 2,190 612 973 1926 6013 11714
Accumulated depreciation ZEHIE 913) (263) (467) (1,106) (1,508) (4257)
Net book amount REFE 1,277 349 506 820 4,505 7457
Year ended 31 December 2012 & 220124
2A3IBLEEE
Opening net book amount FRERE 1,277 349 506 820 4,505 7457
Acquisition of subsidiaries U= YNS) — — — 64 — 64
Additions RE 278 33 186 | 755 638 2,890
Disposals (Note 29(b)) HE (BE29(0)) — — 0 (4) (95) (100)
Exchange difference ERER — = 3 2 7 12
Depreciation e (461 (104) (142) (437) (1,071 (2215)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,094 278 552 2,200 3,984 8,108
At 31 December 2012 20124128318
Cost AR 2,468 645 1,158 3732 6,437 14,440
Accumulated depreciation REE (1374) (367) (606) (1,532) (2453) (6332)
Net book amount AREDSE 1,094 278 552 2,200 3984 8,108
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5B R

5 WE BERRE-FEE(E)

Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office  Computer Motor
ments fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HE#E GRREE BORE BERE RE #Et
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEr FEr FEr TEx TEr TEr
Year ended 3| December 2013 EZ2013F
RA3IBLEEE
Opening net book amount FORERE 1,094 278 552 2,200 3,984 8,108
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RHE AR — — 5 14 = 19
Additions NE 538 129 452 470 = 1,589
Disposals (Note 29(b)) HE (BE29(0)) — — — o (20) (20)
Exchange difference EHER 0 () 25 16 13 52
Depreciation e (513) (108) (197) (620) (1,126) (2,564)
Closing net book amount EREERE 1,118 298 837 2,080 2,851 7,184
At 31 December 2013 R2013512R31H8
Cost BEN 3,005 773 1,464 4233 6,264 15,739
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (1,887) (475) (627) (2,153) (3.413) (8,555)
Net book amount FREDHHE 1,118 298 837 2,080 2,851 7,184

All depreciation expenses for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 were

charged in administrative expenses.

HEWIBFER202FENA3NBIEFE

M ERXEH RITRAX °

GOODWILL - GROUP 6 HE-AZE
2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Cost and net book amount B K% AR FHE 557 557

Based on the impairment test of goodwill, no impairment against the Group's

goodwill as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil) was considered necessary.

BEFEERENR  NEBEHER20I13
F12A31B012F : &)t EELR

R

Annual Report £ # 2013

99



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% & R MY &
7  INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY 7 RHBRARKRE-ERQF
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000
THT FET
Unlisted investment, at cost IEETIRE (RRAN) 126,764 125,339

100

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

(i) MEBARFELT:

Particulars
of registered
Principal capital/issued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations B3 e Interest held
=L AR B L 3 FERBRERE ERTRAHR BEER
2013 2012
Directly held:
EERE:
ASR Champion Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") Investment holding US$! 100% 100%
RERLES BAEK EIH
( [RBRKES] )
Indirectly held:
CE3EE I
ASR Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2,000,000 100% 100%
BB BEER 200000087
AOE Freight (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
BEEERRAA BB in Hong Kong 3,000,000 7% 7T
BEEENRHER
ASR Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
BAEMRBRAR B in Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T
BREENRHRER
ASR Infrastructure Limited Hong Kong Inactive HK$10,000 100% 100%
00 TEEX 10,0007 7T
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7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

()  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR RE

7 RAMEBARRE-AQE(E)
() MEARAFEWT : (&)

Particulars
of registered
Principal capitalfissued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations Rl v Y Interest held
=L AR B 3 3 IRRBRERME ERTRARE BRED
2013 2012
ASR Europe Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 60% 60%
B in Hong Kong 1,000,000 % T
BRATENRHRER
ASR Worldwide Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 60%
B in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BRETENRHUER
ASRCO Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
wARERAA] 0 in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7
BREEENRHER
Star Pac Logistics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Alir freight solution provider RM100,000 80% 100%
SRAE in Malaysia 5% 100,0007T
SRATEEN REERD
Star Pacific Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
AFFEBMRERAR Bk in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BETENRHUER
Pacific Empire Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
(formerly known as “Starlite BB in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
Express International Limited") ERTERRMER
BAMRARAR (R 25
SRERRAA])
AQE Freight (Shenzhen) Limited People’s Republic Alir freight solution provider RMB0,000,000 100% 100%
(Note (a)) of China (PRC") in the PRC AR 10,000,0007T
RN EERECRI) hEARAME RE=ESRAER
BRRF(ME @) (ThE])
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Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

RIBARRE-KRF(E)
() MEAAFEWT : (&)

Particulars
of registered
Principal capitalfissued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations Rl v Y Interest held
=L AR B 3 3 FRRBRERLE ERTRARE BRED
2013 2012
Pacific Empire International PRC Alir freight solution provider RMB7,500,000 100% 100%
Limited (Shenzhen) (Note (a)) H in the PRC AR #7,5000007T
BARREERECRI) RETENRHEER
AR AR (i (a)
Bluestream Aviation Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HKS ! 100% 100%
B in Hong Kong | BT
BEEENRHRER
OA Cargo Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
BB in Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T
BATENRBER
OA Cargo (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10,000 100% 100%
0 in Hong Kong 10,000/87T
BETENRHUER
Pacific Empire (HK) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$10,000 100% 100%
£33 in Hong Kong 10,000/87C
BREEENRHER
Pacific Empire Cargo Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$10 100% 100%
B in Hong Kong 10T
BATENRHRER
Pacific Empire International Limited Macau Air freight solution provider MOP100,000 100% 100%
A FFFRERBRAA] BF in Macau 100,000 &F 7T
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INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

U]

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M5B R

RMBARRE-KRF(E)
() MEARAFEWT : (&)

Particulars
Principal of registered
Place of activities and capitalfissued
Name incorporation place of operations share capital
EBRAK Interest held
=L AR B 3 3 IRRBRERME ERTRARE BRED
2013 2012
Star Cargo (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Alir freight solution provider NTD5,000,000 100% 100%
BERTEEBRMRBRAT =) in Taiwan 316 %5,0000007
RETENRLERD
Star Cargo (Thailand) Limited Thailand Inactive BAHT3,000,000 100% 100%
RE LR 30000002 &
Star Cargo Japan Limited Japan Air freight solution provider JPY350,000 100% 100%
Star Cargo kA &4t BA in Japan 350,000 A
AAZEN REER
Pacific Well (HK) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% 100%
B (BE)BR A 6 in Hong Kong 100,000/ 7T
BBEENRIER
Oriental Way (HK) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% 100%
RE(FR)BRAA BA in Hong Kong 100,000 57T
BRTENRIEER
ASR GSA Limited (Note (d)) Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
GREG) BA in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7
BEEENRHUER
ASR (SE. Asia) Limited (Note (b)) Hong Kong Investment holding HK$ 1,000,000 100% -
GEIO) BA RAZR 1,000,007 7
ASR (SE. Asia) Pte. Ltd. (Note (b)) Singapore Alir freight solution provider in SGD100,100 100% -
(FizE (b)) b Singapore 100,100 703 7T
HMINRZEES RHER
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7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Cont'd) 7 RHBATRE-ZXDR(E)
(i)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d) () MERRFEWOT: (&)
Particulars
Principal of registered
Place of activities and capitalfissued
Name incorporation place of operations share capital
EmBRA/ Interest held
£ R 4 FTERBRERH ERTRAFHE BRER
2013 2012
Star Cargo (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Air freight solution provider in SGDI100 100% -
(Note (b)) A Singapore 100 %7 H3% 7
(MEE (b)) MR &N R AR
OA Cargo Sdn. Bhd. (Note (b)) Malaysia Air freight solution provider in RM2 100% -
(B (b)) Y Vit Malaysia 15%

SRATEENRAEES

ASR Logistics Sdn. Bhd. (Note (b)) Malaysia Inactive RM2 100%
(& (b)) SRAE TEEZ 15%

ASR E-commerce Limited (Note (b)) Hong Kong Inactive HK$100,000 100%
(H3 b)) N TmEE 100,000 7T

AQE India Freight Limited (Note (c)) Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2 100%
(MEE () &g RERR BT

ASR Europe Oy (Note (b)) Finland Air freight solution provider in EUR2,500 60%
(M3 (b)) 58 Finland 2,500 B0 7T

SRTENREER

AOE-TKW Logistics India Prvate India Alr freight solution provider i India INR100,000 51%
Limited (Note (c)) HE HEZERREER 100,000 ENEELL
(FizE (o))

104  ASRHoldings Limited * #7¥{ZRARA T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. ] -] pL <IN
o B 76 % 4 5
. H
7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Cont'd) 7 RHBARRE-XAF(E
(i)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d) (i) MEBLARFEWT: (&
Notes: (T
(a)  These subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies incorporated in PRC. @) ZEWBARADEGEMAKZ
MBEREMERHA e
(b)  These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year ended 3| December () ZEMRBRAEREERE20I3F
2013 12A31 A EFEFEMMKL
() These subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 31 December 201 3. (0 ZEMRBRANEZ2013F12
A3 B LR -
(d)  This subsidiary was incorporated during the year ended 3| December 2012. (d) ZHBAREREZE2012512
A3I B RRMAAL -
(i) Transactions with non-controlling interests: (i) EFEREZZIRS:
(a)  Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control () HERMBARIMER (WX
REEIE)
On I3 September 2013, Star Pacific Logistics Limited disposed of 20% of R2013F9A 138 KEFE
interest in Star Pac Logistic Sdn. Bhd. at a consideration of HK$47,000. The R AR A Al & Star Pac
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Star Pac Logistic Sdn. Bhd. Logistic Sdn. Bhd.#)20%#&%
on the date of disposal was HK$5,000. The Group recognised the gain on RER47,0004 T © Star Pac
disposal of HK$42,000 as capital reserve in equity. Logistic Sdn. Bhd.FE{Z ARz
& A HMREERS,0008
o AEERERETHER
A A RERR & Y2542, 00078 T ©
(b)  Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (b) WEEMIB AR E iR

On 17 September 2013, ASR Limited acquired an additional 40% of the issued
shares of ASR Worldwide Logistics Limited for a purchase consideration of
HK$1,068,000. The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in ASR
Worldwide Logistics Limited on the date of acquisition was HK$855,000. The
Group recognised the consideration paid in excess of the carrying amount of
the non-controlling interest in the amount of HK$213,000 as capital reserve in

equity.

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests for the year ended

3| December 2012.

2013498 178 + ASR Limited
W BB BEIMO%HIASR Worldwide
Logistics Limited2 1T -
IWEER(E A 1,068,000/ T ° ASR
Worldwide Logistics Limited3E
TR S A UREE B R BREE
£855,000/8 7T « AEERER
ETINEAHERAENRE
BB ESREENSE
213,000/ °

BHE01E12AIBILEE - #

BETIFERERRS -
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 8 AWHHESHEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TAET
At | January RIAIH — 7,207
Redemptions o — (7,181)

Available-for-sale financial asset revaluation AHHEeEESREE

reserves released on disposal ik 2 el - (34
Net gain recognised in profit or loss RBRER R F R — 8

At 3| December ®I12A31H
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B AR RE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP 9 EBEREH-F5E
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: BREMEREERBREMERAGESIT
m
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Deferred tax assets: BREFSRHEE
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 1218 A BAfg Uk el
more than |2 months HIREHIEE E 550 923
Deferred tax liabilities: EERAARE -
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after R 1218 A BAfg Uk el
more than 12 months HIRERIE S R (1,479) (1,362)
(929) (439)
Deferred income taxes of the Group represent temporary differences under the ARENELERERIREEEEER
liability method using taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance EZREERBEAEREENNELE R
sheet date in the respective jurisdictions. The gross movements in deferred income MOBEAENEREE - BEREH
tax assets/(liabilities) during the years are as follows: BE/(BBRIREANEERERAT :
Withholding
tax relating

to unremitted Accelerated

earnings

tax

BBAKRE depreciation

&R BOZE  Tax losses Total
WENR HEFE  BEER #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
At | January 2012 R01EIAIR (448) (525) 1,335 362
Recognised in the consolidated statement 4R & 2 E K@K T
of comprehensive income (Note 25) R (Fitzk2s) (355) (93) (353) (801)
At 31 December 2012 20126 12A318 (803) (618) 982 (439)
Recognised in the consolidated statement AR & 2 E KK T
of comprehensive income (Note 25) R (MiaE2s5) (379) 230 (341) (490)
At 31 December 2013 20135 12A318 (1,182) (388) 64 (929)
Annual Report £ # 2013 1 07
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108

DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Contd)

Withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China, in respect of earnings
generated after 31 December 2008. The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are
held by companies incorporated in Hong Kong and are subject to 5% withholding

tax.

As at 3| December 2013, the Group had not recognised deferred income
tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately HK$23,171,000 (2012:
HK$8,428,000). Except for tax losses amounting to approximately HK$18,213,000
(2012: HK$5,940,000) that can be carried forward indefinitely to offset against
future taxable income, the Group's remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire in

the following years:

BEREH-FE8(2&)
T B A3 B S 9 90 & £ 3 5t 2008 F 12
A3 BAEELANRFIRMEREES
KRB - REETEAM
RME AR BEEAT MK LN RA AR
B BHA 5% BN o

R2I3F1NA3IAE A& B @ K5
T8 B 18 923,171,000 JL(2012%
84280008 L ) BRELEMEHEE -
B B 18 & 18182130007 L2012
5,940,000 7T ) A % IR HA3th 4% 88 R 4 4 8
RRERBIAIN - REE R T RER
RMHEBEERATEE DN -

Group

K&
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
2015 60 60
2016 42 42
2017 32 32
2018 4,030 1,658
2019 696 696
2020 98 -
4,958 2,488

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7
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: won % ER M
H ¥ "
TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP 10 EBZEWRE-£A%E
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Trade receivables B SN IA 133,592 103,829
The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; or (i) credit terms of 30 AEERMEETER (i) BE MR %
to 60 days. (N30 60 B EH#EST
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the ageing analysis of trade receivables based R2013F K2012F 128318 BIF%E
on invoice date was as follows: ZAHMELNE FREFENRER DT
N
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
—0to 30 days —0&230K 79,980 65,482
— 31 to 60 days —31E60K 37,864 31,293
— 61 to 90 days —61 290K 11,716 4,735
— Over 90 days —90KA L 4,032 2319
133,592 103,829
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10 TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (Cont'd) 10 ESRWRE-XEE(E)
As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of approximately HK$55,476,000 (2012: R2013F 128318 + #555476,000/%
HK$41,348,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of TC(201246F : 41,348,000 7L ) W B 5 &
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing WHREEBRERRE ERFEHN
analysis of these trade receivables was as follows: VEERDRNELRPER %FE

BIERMGARN IR DTN -

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
— | to 30 days — 230K 37,714 32,009
-3 to 60 days —31E260K 13,284 6218
- 61 to 90 days —61 290K 1,088 1,656
— Over 90 days —90KMN £ 3,390 1,465
55,476 41,348
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables were denominated in the AREESRKFRBNREAENTIIE
following currencies: HIME
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
- HK$ —BT 62,897 66,844
~RMB —AR% 34221 25,550
~INR —HEEL 23,666 -
~UsD — K70 4,240 3,790
-NTD —Hatk 3,447 2731
- JPY —H 3,072 2,854
— Other currencies —Hin g% 2,049 2,060
133,592 103,829
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is the fair values REEREGRNRAEERRAESE
of the trade receivables. The Group did not hold any collateral as security. WHENRAAEE - AEEVEFFE
AR IEER
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying amount of trade receivables RWIBFERW0NFENAIIB EHE
approximated their fair values. YHEREERE AR BERS -

110 ASRHoldings Limited * #¥ZRA R
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) B 76 3 4L B 5F
. F W
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES I EAHRE ZEREGEKR
The nature of prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at 31 December R20I13FE K2012F12H318 » B K
2013 and 2012 was as follows: B e REMBWREIENESNT
Group Company
A&H AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr AT TERr TAET
Prepayments TR FIE 5,186 2,395 — —
Deposits ®e 3,430 4234 — —
Other receivables H e kIR 3,518 4018 = =
12,134 10,647 — —
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (b)) FEWFIEB R RIFIA (MiE(®b)) — = 237,662 77,008
12,134 10,647 237,662 77,008
Less: non-current portion: W JERNERES S -
Prepayment and other receivables FERE R
Ho A e U R IE (3,741) — — —
Deposits ®e (1,441) (352) — —
6,952 10,295 237,662 77,008
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112

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Notes:

(@  Asat 3l December 2013, the carrying amounts of other receivables, deposits and

amounts due from subsidiaries approximated their fair values.

(b)  The amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand.

The balance was denominated in the following currencies:

BANRE  REREMERRERE)
it & -

@

(b)

R2013F 128318 - EtbrElEE -
B & U T B A A 5108 /) BR T {5 £

EUMBARZEARER 28R

HERA TIIERIIE -

Group Company
rRE b YN

2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET THET FET
— HK$ — BT 4978 3332 237,662 77,008
- RMB —AR¥ 2,691 5810 — —
~UsD — T 1,169 1,193 — —
— Other currencies —Hin G 3,296 312 — —
12,134 10,647 237,662 77,008

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

B AR RE

2 BEAER RERFLZEED

Group Company
AEE L3N
2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TER TAT TR TR

Cash at bank and on hand IRIT R FEEE S 252,534 192,935 51,516 24,868
Pledged cash at bank (Note (a)) BEEARTHRE (@) 24,303 22,299 — =
Pledged short-term bank deposits BRI HIRITER

(Note (a)) (Fif5E()) 2,579 2,586 — —
Pledged deposits [REiREYESA 26,882 24,885 — —
Total cash and bank balances B RIBITHGETE 279,416 217,820 51,516 24,868
Note: Wﬁf :

(@  Asat 3] December 2013 and 2012, the amounts were pledged to banks to secure

certain loans facilities of certain subsidiaries and guarantees provided to airline

suppliers (Note 33).

() M2013FER2012FI12A318 @ ZEHEER
BRI (ERETHEBARNE TERE
fE AR T A% A B R R BRI E A
(PffsE33) o
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114

PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd) 2 CEAER - HERBRLSENE)
Total cash and bank balances were denominated in the following currencies: RBe RFITHERKEEATIESIIE
Group Company
r5H b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THERr TAT TERT TAT
— HK$ — BT 169,153 122,893 51,516 24,868
- RMB —AR¥ 63,106 47,621 — —
~UsSD —E7 17,894 24212 — —
- PY —HE 11,965 4581 = =
- NTD —Fak 7,135 6,058 — —
~INR —HEEL 4,600 — = —
- MOP — R 2,036 3,367 = =
~EUR —BT 1,800 9,072 — —
— Other currencies —Hip G 1,727 I6 — —
279,416 217,820 51516 24,868

Cash in bank earned interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rate.
As at 3| December 2013, the effective interest rates on pledged short-term
bank deposits were 0.3% (2012: 0.3%) per annum, and these deposits have an
approximate average maturity of 33 days (2012: 96 days).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying amounts of cash and bank

balances approximated their fair values.

The Group's RMB balances are placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies in the PRC is subject to rules and regulations of foreign exchange

control promulgated by the PRC government.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7

BOREEREHARTERNEZHH
B RWI13FI12A3IR EXHEH
RIFROBERENER0.3%(2012F -
03%) - Mz FF R TR 338(2012
F:968)AEIH -

M20I3FER012FNA3IB BE R
RITESRNEEEEEA L BERE -

AEEMNAREEHREF RSB AR
T ARBIFATERIBEE - HF
CBREAARBINENESRLAR
SNEE 78 % o B O 98 £ B0 SN EE ' 151 45 A
FOERHRIR o
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I3 SHARE CAPITAL

Capital structure of the Company was as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 RKRE

Number of shares

B AR RE

ARTEARBENT

Share capital

RO EE B
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT
Ordinary shares ik
Authorised: ETE
At | January, share of HK$0.01 each R | A | B + BikHEE
001 TRk 2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 20,000 20,000
Effect of share subdivision to R4 = A 0.005 BT
HK$0.005 each (Note (a)) B2 (M (2) 2,000,000,000 — — —
At 3| December, RK12A31 B - BAREE0.005
share of HK$0.005 each AITRR G 4,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: BEITRAR LB
Number of shares Share capital
RAEE [
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
At | January, RIAITE 8KREE0O
share of HK$00! each op:olier 400,000,000 10,000,000 4,000 100
Issue of shares (Note (b)) BrRO (H3E (b)) — 100,000,000 - 1,000
Capitalisation issue (Note (c)) B ET(ME () — 290,000,000 - 2,900
Effect of share subdivision to RO FAZEEFH0.005 T
HK$0.005 each (Note (a)) B8 2 (M (2) 400,000,000 — - —
At 31 December, RI12A31B - BAREE0.005
share of HK$0.005 each TR 800,000,000 400,000,000 4,000 4,000
Annual Report £ # 2013 1 1 5
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SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

Note:

(@)

With effective from 24 May 2013, each share of the Company of HK$0.01 per share
was subdivided into 2 shares of HK$0.005 per share. The number of share capital and
share options will be increased accordingly. Share capital is therefore presented on a

post share subdivision basis.

On 6 January 2012, the Company issued 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0I
each at an offering price of HK$0.93 each through the public offering for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$93,000,000. These shares rank pari passu in all

respects with the existing shares.

On 16 January 2012, pursuant to a shareholder's resolution passed on 3 December
2011, as a result of the listing of the Company, a total of 290,000,000 shares of
the Company were allotted and issued to the shareholders as at the date of the
resolution on a pro rata basis (“Capitalisation Issue”). The amount of HK$2,900,000

was paid in full against the share premium account of the Company.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7

iy

L ENE)

it & -

@

B2013%58248 8  RAREFHK0.0
A ITRIIR (D B 74 A28 & A%0.0058 7T
BIRR M o BN RIEIRIEE B KBRS
me Bt - RARBROFAGELES
5 o

R2012F 18168 AREEBLH
BE N BHEX93,0000008 TIERER
0938 TR & & B%17100,000,000/ 5
REBOIBTHTRER - ZZERHR
FTE A EERE RN Z A R ER o

R2012F 1 B 168 + REM2011F12
A3HBBHRMAZR  BREAR
AL AARNAZRB R
il AR 3R e 8 R 3176 ££290,000,000
ikfn ( [EAREEIT] ) B
ARERRO RERBH IS8
2,900,000/ 7T °
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o B I o
|4 RESERVES 14 @
Group AEH
Available-
for-sale
financial Share-
assets based
Statutory revaluation  payment
andlegal  reserve  reserve
Share  Capital  Exchange  reserves WEHE  HRA Retained
premum  reserve  reserves AER SMEE AEBH  Sibtowl  earning Total
RiVEE EARE EXRE SRR EERR ARNRE M RERN &5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
TAR  TER  TER  TER  TER  TAR  TER  TER  TER
Balanceat | fanuary 2012 20121 A1 RV — 4l 626 1103 £l — 894 103905 1128
Currency translation differences 3% Z2% = = 643 = = = 643 = 643
Recycling of revaluation reserve
upon disposal of HEMHELESR
avallable-for-sale financial assets  EER B HBEER - - - - (34 - (34 - (34
Dividends R - - - - - = —  (40400)  (40400)
Allotment of shares Rk 92,000 = = = = — 92000 = 92000
Capitalisation ssue BB (2900) - - — - = (90 - (2900)
Share issuance cost (Note (c))  Z{TRAMA (Hz(C) (16535) = = = = — (1653 —  (1653%)
Share-based payment AR RERRAH - - - — — 94 94 - 9%
Transfer to statutory reserve. ~ BEEATERHE - = = 616 = = 66 (616) =
Profitfor the year ERh| - - - - - - — M 89943
Balance at 3| December 2012 2012612431 BRI 84 72,565 6161 2269 1719 - 94 82808 152832 235640
Currency translation differences iz - — [,325 — — — [,325 — 1,325
Dividends Re - - — - - - — (364000  (36,400)
Partia disposal of a subsidiary to (I EH KB AR
non-controlling interest FHERER — 4 — - — — 4 — 2
Acquisition of additional interest [FIZEERR R &3 Mie
in a subsidiary from R—TENEAR
non-controling interest M E e - (213) = = - - @) - (213)
Share-based payment PR RERBIRH - — — - — 145 | 425 — 145
Transfer to statutory reserve.~ BEEATERE - - - 956 - - 956 (956) -
Profit for the year ERgh| - - - - = - — 93050 93,050
Balance at 3| Decermber 2013 120134 12331 BV &EER 7255 5990 3594 2675 — 1519 8343 208526 294869
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RESERVES (Cont'd)

(@)

Capital reserve

As at 3| December 2012, this represented the difference between the
nominal amount of share capital issued by the Company and the nominal
amount of share capital of the subsidiaries transfer to the Company pursuant

to the Reorganisation of the Group that took place in year 201 I.

Capital reserve recorded during the year ended 3| December 2013
represented the gain/loss on equity transactions with non-controlling

interests as detailed in Note 7.

Statutory and legal reserves

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are required
to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the fund until such fund
reaches 50% of the companies' registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the companies,
provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the

companies' registered capital.

Subsidiary incorporated in Macao is required to set aside a minimum of 25%
of the subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the balance
of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the subsidiary’s capital in

accordance with the Macao Commercial Code #377.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7

14

wE(E)

(@)

CEN- 1

R2012F 128318 KIBARAR
ERTRAHEEREAERRN
01 1 FHETHEARA R R EE
MEBARKRAEECHNE
B o

HZE2013F2A3IBIEFEAR
M B A e I I i e

HRHEEIR - EERR
570
EERAEHE

BEEBAREERRER R H
ARVER R AR 10% DEEE
¢ HERHEHESERRAEMELR
H50% Al c ZEREES TR
ERIAERTTEM - LR
BEIENARZMHER  HEH
BEBERTRRFMER25%H
RIREK

REBRPIREAE 37716 - RIRFT
FEMAK S O BB 2 R AR H R B R
HARD 1% BARERE  BEE
A ERE SR E N AL R AR A9 50%
Bk
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14 RESERVES (Contd)

©

Share issuance costs

Share issuance costs mainly include underwriting commission, lawyer's fees,
reporting accountant's fee and other related costs. Incremental costs that
were directly attributable to the issue of the new ordinary shares amounting

to HK$ 16,535,000 was treated as a deduction from share premium.

Share-based payments

Share options are granted to selected employees. The exercise price of the
granted options is equal to the market price of the shares plus 0.55% on the
date of the grant. Options are conditional on the employee completing two
years' service (the vesting period). The options are exercisable starting two
years from the grant date. The options have a contractual option term of 3.5
years. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or

settle the options in cash.

B AR RE

14 f&E(E)

(©)

RITROEA

BOBTRAXERERHA
& ZME BREHAMBAK
HAMEREKA - BT ERRE
L TR AN 16,535,000/ 701
RAEBRMGENMR

AR BEMR AR

BREERTEIENES -
REWBRENTEESRHLA
HE AT B H00.55% ° FEAHERY
G REEARBEMME (AT
EH) o BRER N R AR
MERRTTE - BIRENSOH
R R35F - AEEYEAR
[ 8k AR & 46 B R R A E 3k
HETEE -
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RESERVES (Cont'd) 14 f&EE)

(d)  Share-based payments (Contd) d) URGBREBOSRE)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related AT REARITEBRESE NE
weighted average exercise prices are as follows: B R H G RAIETI1TEE

2013 2012

Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price in HK$ of share  price in HK$ of share
per share options per share options
option (thousands) option (thousands)

BHBREN B BRESN
FHTEE RRE THOEE FRCHE
(U#xst) BE(FH) (VB  HE(FhH)
At | January RIAIB 1.830 7,980 — =
Granted B — — 1.830 7980
Forfeited B — — — —
Exercised 217 — — — —
Expired EER — — — —

Effect of share subdivision Rin A&

(Note (a)) (P () (0.915) 7,980 — —
At 31 December RI12A31H 0915 15,960 1.830 7,980

Out of the 15,960,000 outstanding options, nil were exercisable.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7

ZE115960,00017 IR FER F 75
RATTT{E o
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RESERVES (Cont'd) 14

(d)

Share-based payments (Contd)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry

date and exercise prices:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR RE

RE(E)

(d)

URORERNAR(E)

FREARITEBRENEH B
RATEEMT :

Exercise price 2013 2012

in HK$ per Number of Number of

Expiry date — 7 June 2016 share option share options share options
BHBREN (thousands) (thousands)

THEE BRE BRE

EMAH-2016F6A7A (XBat) #A (T4) #E (T4)
2012 — — —
2013 — — —
2014 — — —
2015 — — —
2016 0.915 15,960 7,980
0.915 15,960 7,980

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2012 determined using
the Binomial option pricing model was HK$0.36 per option. The significant
inputs into the model were weighted average share price of HK$1.82 at
the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatility of 39.02%, dividend
yield of 5.55%, an expected option life of 3.5 years, and an annual risk-free
interest rate of 0.19%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis
of daily share prices over the last year. The fair value of options granted is
adjusted to HK$0.18 per share upon the share subdivision as disclosed in
Note (a). See Note 22 for the total expense recognised in the profit or loss

for share options granted to employees.

R0NEMB B BREEER
AETNER L BRENNETE
BRREBEABHERE36HE
Lo RERFTANEZRAGR
R BEB&nETEHRE 82
AL EXFRTEE - KB
39.02% - BR B E5.55% - TEHIEE
WREFHI3 5 F MR I F A&
0.19% © EFFEE A R B WITLE
EENRE - DREBEEEEAH
RENSTHFTITEL - KiE
IHEBEBENRMIFAR B
BREBERENAABERARES
BR0.18%ETT - BEAEIERTHE
mEERLNBEREMERNE
FX - 202 -
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|14  RESERVES (Contd) 14 f&EE)
(d)  Share-based payments (Contd) d) URBREBHLSRE)
Note: BisE
(@)  With effective from 24 May 2013, each share of the Company of HK$0.01 (@ H201365H248 % + "]
per share was subdivided into 2 shares of HK$0.005 per share. The number F001B TR RN B Rl A2
of share capital and share options will be increased accordingly. Share options & B A%0.005 8 TTHIAR 15 © BRAR
are therefore presented on a post share subdivision basis. RSB ISR N
I BAERBRO FAREE
251 -
Company
ARH
Share-based
payment
reserve
Share DR% R Retained
premium HEtm earnings Total
ROEE  ARRBE  RERN st

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TR T T#T

Balances at | January 2013 R2013F | A1 BV 197,804 94 25,058 222,956
Dividend R — — (36,400) (36,400)
Employee share option scheme B TRERE 2

-Value of employee services —-BIRKER

(Note 22) (PtaE22) — 1,425 — 1,425
Profit for the year FN= A — — 173,685 173,685
Balance at 3| December 2013 20135 12431 BEV AR 197,804 1,519 162,343 361,666
Representing: ¥ -

Reserves &t 27,943

Proposed dividend e 35N 134,400

162,343
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]
] y B 36 ) B F
RESERVES (Cont'd) 14 f&EE)
Company
ARF
Share-based
payment
reserve
Share BRGA Retained
premium HEw earnings Total
ROEE  AREE  RERN Azt
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TRT TERT TR TERT
Balances at | January 2012 201261 A | BEVAEER 125,239 — 37,590 162,829
Allotment of shares e 92,000 — — 92,000
Capitalisation issue BERETT (2,900) — — (2,900)
Share issuance cost TR (16,535) — — (16,535)
Dividend BB — = (40,400) (40,400)
Employee share option scheme B TRRETE
-Value of employee services —BIRBKER
(Note 22) (B 22) — 94 — 94
Profit for the year F A5 A — — 27,868 27,868
Balance at 3| December 2012 20129 12731 BV AR 197,804 94 25,058 222956
Representing: ¥5
Reserves i [1,058
Proposed dividend EERE 14,000
25,058
TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP 15 BLEMAFE-KEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT TRT
Trade payables B HRENIE 89,619 68,222
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B 5 E B It
I5 TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP (Contd) 15 EZEMRE-LXEE (£)

M2013FER2012FE 128318 @ 1RERE
HEEHL M E Z BN ZUEMRER DT L0

As at 3| December 2013 and 2012, the ageing analysis of trade payables based on

invoice date was as follows:

T~

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERr TET

—0to 30 days -0£30K 50,749 45,688
- 31 to 60 days 31 260K 20,163 13377
— 61 to 90 days 61 290K 6,236 3,181
- 91 to 120 days 9IZE 120K 1,857 1,889
— Over 120 days —120RA £ 10,614 4,087
89,619 68,222

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables were denominated in the

REBEE S RN FBNKRAEENL T

=1

following currencies: ®oE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
— HK$ — BT 49,951 36,698
- USD -7 26,473 22,129
—RMB — AR 9,707 6,630
—RM — 5k 2,349 726
— Other currencies —Hih & 1,139 2,039
89,619 68222

1=

il

M2013FER20124 128318 - BHER
FIEMERAERE A EEES °

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying amounts of trade payables

\

approximated their fair values.
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16 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS l6 HtESHREREGER
Group Company
rEE KAF
2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TAT TR TAL

Accruals e &R 21,751 15,625 276 259
Deposits received BliiEe 8,84| 4,354 —
Other payables Hip IR 1,535 86 — —
32,127 20,065 276 259
Amount due to a subsidiary (Note (b))  FEfS—FEIHI B R RIFIE
GEIOY — — 50,000
32,127 20,065 50,276 259
Notes: B 5t -
(@)  Asat 3] December 2013 and 2012, the carrying amounts of other payables, accruals @@ R20I3FR2012F 124318 - HifE
and amount due to a subsidiary approximated their fair values. R EAERAREN—RRER

AIFEANEREERAAABEMAS

(b)  As at 31 December 2013, the amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and (b) R20I13F12A318  ZEHEHEEK
repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2012, there was no amount due to a B RERERERER - R2012F12
subsidiary. A3IR - HEEN—fRfE A RFE -

The balance was denominated in the following currencies: AT EHIIE -

Group Company
AW A2
2013 2012 2013 2012

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TAT TR TAL

— HK$ — BT 9,964 8,237 50,276 259

-~ RMB —AR¥ 17,675 8,258 — —

~GBP —HeE 1,655 2,495 —

~EUR —BT 1,489 — — —

— Other currencies —Hin G 1,344 1,075 = =
32,127 20,065 50,276 259
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126

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES — GROUP

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets would revert

to the lessor in the event of default.

17 BMEHEEEBE-XEE
MRUAEEENBRSEROBER
HHAA  HHEEAEER FAFEE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TRT
Gross finance lease liabilities MEMERGBESE
— minimum lease payments —REBEEMNK
No later than | year —F LA 8 8
Later than | year and no later than 5 years —FAERFUR — 8
8 16
Future finance charges ARREER (1) @
Present value of finance lease liabilities AMEHERENRE 7 |4
The present value of finance lease REMEEED
liabilities is as follows: BEMT :
No later than | year —FR 7 7
Later than | year and no later than 5 years —FRERFURA — 7
7 14

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7
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INVESTMENT IN AND LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY -
GROUP

@

(b)

Investment in an associated company

B AR RE

18 R-EBRERARZRERMN—BHE
ARELHZER-FKE
(@) R-BHERARAZRE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET

%
X
=
BNt

Investment, at cost

=
==
Ik
5
=)

Associates

Details of investment in an associated company as at 3| December 2013 are

R2013F 128318 R—EBERARZKE

as follows: SIBWT
Place of % of
business/ ownership Principal Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest activity method
gEg BB
ERAE B3 3t B BBk TEXRHK TE%
Castel Hong Kong Limited @B ERRAT Hong Kong 10% Note | Equity
BA 10% PAE | i
Note |: Castel Hong Kong Limited has not commenced operations as at 3| Bzl : MBEABRAFNR20I3FI12A

December 2013.

Castel Hong Kong Limited is a private company and there is no quoted

market price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the

associated company.

Loan to an associated company
As at 31 December 2013, loan to an associated company was non-
cancellable, unsecured and non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of the

balance was denominated in HK$ and approximated its fair value.

I BHARRREERS

MBEEERAFAAS—HMALARA &
Bt BARTISRE -

A58

MEBBMASEREE AR ZEEN
RAfE-

(b) M—FEBELRELZER
R2013F 128318« [(— e
AAMEH  ERAT ARG - &8
BR&ES - BHRETENETH
B BEENARBEMAE -
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128

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally

engaged in the provision of air freight service in the wholesale market.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive Directors.
The Executive Directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the operating

segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the business from a

geographical perspective, i.e. by destinations of freight services.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7

HERDHEHR

AR R—RREZERLDR - MAKE
AREBREAMEMGREZER
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IREERRACHERRRNTESZ -4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont )

The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for the reportable

segments for the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

B AR RE

HERIHBEN(E)
HZEWBENAINALEE: #Hi17=
ERA R BERENDTERIT

Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total

&M EY)| DRHE FEM @zt

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THT T TR TER

Sales to external

customers NP E P IHE 124,387 82,560 506,437 93,329 806,713
Cost of sales SHEMAR (113,108) (78,697) (319,062) (81,135) (592,002)
Segment results N i 6,334 2,168 105,214 6,848 120,564
Unallocated expenses, net  RABECHZ + /558 (7,471)
Depreciation e (2,564)
Operating profit R 110,529
Finance income, net BMEWA - FEE 557
Profit before income tax  FRFT{S TR A A 111,086
Income tax expense TS BRI (18,380)
Profit for the year F A5 A 92,706

Revenue of approximately HK$805,2 19,000 and HK$ 1,494,000 were derived from

air freight service and sea freight service, respectively.

B MRS NS E IR B A A MR ) B A
7%805,219,000 7T & 1,494,000/ ©
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19  SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for the reportable

segments for the year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

19 HERIBEME)
HEWNENAIRALEE: #ii7=
ERA AR BERENDTBERIT

Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total

BRM EM TAE FEM st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TAT TR TR THT

Sales to external

customers AR & 150,701 72934 372,880 77,682 674,197
Cost of sales SHERR (139,253) (68618) (217,026) (64/401) (489,298)
Segment results DEPERE 7,066 2,664 96,204 8,197 114,131
Unallocated expenses, net  RAFLFHY « /F5 (5:478)
Depreciation e (2215)
Operating profit R 106,438
Finance income, net BMEWA - R S0l
Profit before income tax  FRFT{S TR A A 106,939
Income tax expense TS BRI (16.863)
Profit for the year F A5 A 90,076

Revenue of approximately HK$673,805,000 and HK$392,000 were derived from

air freight service and sea freight service, respectively.

130 ASRHoldings Limited * #3¥ZRA R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

] -] ps N =
o RIS B B T
. ]
OTHER LOSSES, NET AND OTHER INCOME 20 HttR  FERAEMERA
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Other losses, net Hivk5E - 38
Gains/(losses) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment HEWE  BERXEKR/(B1B) I (42)
Net foreign exchange losses X EERHE (2,199) (783)
Gains on acquisition of a subsidiary Wi B — R O B 2 B M 874 =
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHESMERE
financial assets Wi — 8
Others Hith (22) (38)
(1,346) (855)
Other income Hitslt A
Bad debt recovery R — 51
Dividend income from investment RERENRELA — 26
Others it — 173
— 250
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21 EXPENSES BY NATURE 20 BRUESSMMAX
Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are analysed as SIASHE KA RITH R 09 F X 2 4 10
follows: T
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Cost of sales HEKA 592,002 489,298
Employee benefit expenses, including EERNAX(BREEZHM)
directors’ emoluments (Note 22) (Ff5E22) 60,693 45,790
Depreciation (Note 5) WE(MES) 2,564 2215
Operating lease rentals for buildings EFREHERS 8,034 5,356
Auditors' remuneration ZERE £ 1,721 1,739
Marketing and promotion MSEERER 9,051 6,572
Professional service expenses EXRBFRT 4,170 3,134
Travelling =i 6,108 4483
Communication i 2,328 1,861
Bad debt written-off BRI 234 —
Others Hit 7,933 6,706
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses HEKARITHRAX B 694,838 567,154
Cost of sales recognised as expenses mainly included flight charges from airlines and BRABAIMNHEEKATIZAEMER
other freight forwarders. ARHMEEREHNEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

] -] ps N =
.9 B 36 W3
. ]
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EERANX
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Salaries, bonus and other welfares e EAREMER 54,477 42,452
Pension - defined contribution plans (Note (a)) RINE — ERATE B (5 @) 4791 3244
Share-based payments SARR AR R AR & 14 3 ,425 94
60,693 45,790
Note: Pt
(@)  Pension - defined contribution plans @) EBARE-TEHEMKFE

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme") in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute
5% of their gross eamings with a ceiling of HK$1,250 per month to the MPF
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited

contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future year.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes covering its full time PRC employees. The schemes are
administered by the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC eligible employees are required to make contributions based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC. No forfeited contribution

is available to reduce the contribution payable in future year.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees or retirees other than the

defined contribution payments as disclosed above.

AEBRBEBREEARSE
2Ep2E—ERH T RS
2 ([aBEestal] ) - RER
BeiramRa - BEEREEE
EEAEBREFEFMA5%M
wEE AWK - FRABMLE
BEA1,250%T - AEERE
et ElAENE - T ERRE
BEL AR TR - WAEREEZIK
B £t 3R AT R 5 AR 2R 4F TR 6 FE AT

K o

AEENTEMBARN2EE
BHFRAG S REE 2B
BlE R - &t &l B A BB
BIBEE - ARERFENGE
REEBERETENATE - BE
BRIREMETADLELH
oo MARMBEEEAGEEAE
B BB AR A RS koA
RERNEEAERKEHEE -
U S5 R B £ 55K T (RS R IR
FREAEMER -

B R E BRI - AEE
BEE B HRNABSIATRIN
FEMEBEREENOEMART -
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B 75 & B &
23 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 23 EEREREEESHMH
(2) Directors’ emoluments @) ESFHM
The emoluments of individual director of the Company during the years ME 2R RN AEEBH
which were included in the employee benefit expenses as disclosed in Note B S B AN 2 AE 51 & = 5 B EL S
22 are set out below: NN
Pension-
defined
contribution
plans
Salariesand  Discretionary Bhe
Name of Director Fees allowances bonus -EH Total
Espg we  HERER RiEA GG | @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TARL TER TAR TER
Year ended 3| December 2013 HEWDBENANBLEE
Exeautive Directors HiTEE
—YuHo Yuen, Sunny —RER - 2,662 - 15 2,677
— Mak Chi Hung, Richard BT — 214 — 15 2,157
~ Law Kai Lo, Niki — R - 2,14 — 15 2,157
Independent BV
Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
~Weifin Cai =5 400 = = = 400
— Zhang Xianlin —REM 400 - - — 400
~Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony —-E#E 460 — — — 460
,260 6,946 — 45 8251

134
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& B > N —
s B3 &R B BT
H ¥ H
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 23 EBREHREEEHFME)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Contd) @ EBHFME)
Pension-
defined
contribution
plans
Salanesand  Discretionary &ihe
Name of Director Fees allowances bonus —Ef Total
LR B FERETE  WEEO 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TAL THET TEL TiEr
Year ended 31 December 2012 BEWNENAIALEE
Executive Directors HITEE
~Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny(Note (i) —RER (0) = 2470 - 14 2484
—Mak Chi Hung Richard (Note (i))  — %8 (FizE(i) - 1,950 - 14 1,964
— Law Kai Lo, Niki (Note (i) —BER (k) = 1,950 = 14 1,964
Independent BV
Non-Executive Directors HFHTEE
— WeiJin Ca BT 360 = = = 360
— Zhang Xanlin —REM 360 — — — 360
— Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony -B#E 40 — — — 40
[,140 6,370 — 4 7552
Notes: BfEE -
(i) Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny was the chief executive officer of the Company from (i) 201241 AIBE2012412A
| January 2012 to 7 December 2012. TH - REREERRRARN
TTBUEEL ©
(i)~ Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki were the chief executive iy B01RF12A7ER - BEHE

officers of the Company from 7 December 2012 onwards.
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23

136

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont d)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Contd)
The remuneration shown above represents remuneration received from
the Group by these directors in their capacity as employees to the Group

and/or in their capacity as directors of the companies comprising the Group

during the year.

No director of the Company waived any emolument during the year (2012:

nil).

(b)  Five highest paid individuals
For the year ended 3| December 2013, the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group include 3 directors (2012: 3
directors), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.

The emoluments paid to the remaining 2 (2012: 2) individuals are as follows:

23

ESNEREEEFMZ)

(@)

ESHM ()
ERATEFMENFAZEES
UREEAREERENS R
/RREERAEEET AR
ExmahBAREUERNEH
B -

RER  KRABESHERET
3B (20124 « &) -

IERRFMAL
BZE03FNRA3NALFE A&
BEhisaiMATeIEIRES
(0126 : 3BEE) - RENZM
RERR EIAHT © gk T2 (2012
F:28) EAZEFBAT -

Salary and allowances

Discretionary bonus

Pension — defined contribution plans

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
3,706 3,335
2,220 1013

30 28

5,956 4376
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont d)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (Cont @)

The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2012: 2) individuals for the years ended

31 December 2013 and 2012 fell within the following bands:

23

B AR RE

ESREREEEFME)

b) EEBREFMAL(E)
BE2013FR2012F 1283181
FREHAHR 28 (2012F : 28)
ATHEBN T A T EHE -

2013 2012

Emolument bands (in HK$)
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,500,001- HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001- HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001- HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001- HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001- HK$4,500,000

HEE (LABTat)
500,001 7T 1,000,000/ 7T
1,500,001 77T 22,000,000/ 70
2,000,001 7 7T 22,500,000 7T
2,500,001 77T, %3,000,000/8 7T
3,500,001 7% 7 24,000,000 7T
4,000,001 7C24,500,000/4 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the

directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2012: nil).

Senior management (excluding directors)

The emoluments of the 8 (2012: 9) senior management for the years ended

31 December 2013 and 2012 fell within the following bands:

RER  AEBRERERESKAS
R MA TS EEEFMEEMAR
SESRMARE B REHIERBER
fE (002F &) o

() EREEE(TEEES)
BHE2013FR20012F 1283181
FEHBE (2012F : 98) Bk
EEENHMN T A TEHE :

2013 2012
Emolument bands (in HK$) &R (LABTat)
Below HK$500,001 AA500,001 /87T 3 3
HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,000/ 70 3 3

HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001- HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001- HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001- HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001- HK$4,500,000

1,000,001 7T 2 |,500,0007 7T
1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
2,500,001 8 7T 23,000,000 7T
3,500,001/ 7T £ 4,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001 702 4,500,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the

senior management as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office (2012: nil).

RER - AEEREREARREERE
XS EAFH S MAR S B H AR
SEERNEBIEQRBAE (2012
FE) o
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FINANCE INCOME, NET 24 HMERA FE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Finance income MERA
Interest income on short-term bank deposits FEISRIT RN B 559 504
Finance costs ME A
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITREFFERAX (1 Q)
Interest expense on finance lease liabilities HEMEREMNEHAX (1 )
) ©)
Finance income, net BMEWA - FHE 557 501
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 25 FSHAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits during the years.

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 3% to 9% on
the taxable income above MOP32,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,000)
but below MOP300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$291,000), and thereafter
at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 3| December 2013 and 2012, a
special complementary tax incentive was provided to the effect that tax free
income threshold was increased from MOP32,000 to MOP200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$31,000 to HK$194,000) with the next MOP 100,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$97,000) of profit being taxed at a fixed rate of 9% and

thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%.

The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC corporate income
tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25%. Preferential rate of 5%
withholding income tax is also imposed on dividends relating to any profits earmed
by the PRC incorporated subsidiaries commencing from | January 2008 when

distributed to the holding companies incorporated in Hong Kong.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7
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FIZ165% (2012F: 165%) HOBIREHE
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SRPIR R T3k M 32,0008 T (48
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Tt (ABERAI291000/87T) HFERRIKR
ABENF3%EI%H RET M - T
FReBAMREER X 2%M5 - BE
2013F R20126F 12 A31 B LB Rt
Rl FE R 22 - AR AR R iR
FR32,0002P9 7T 3 £200,0002FI 7T (48
EHKI31, 000/ TR 194,00087) - H
1%100,0002FF 7T (FHE R 497,000/
TT) B FERRT i AR E T B 9% -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

Taxation outside Hong Kong and Mainland China has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AR RE

FEBmE ()
B8 R BRI A VB TV RIAE Y
tEt ERBOA R A R B AR
TR E -

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Current taxation BiTHE
Hong Kong profits tax BENE 1,993 1,726
Taxation outside Hong Kong BRIRINRIA
Macau P 12,817 12,468
Mainland China R A3 2,860 1,534
Others Hith 298 561
15,975 14,563
Over-provision in prior year BAFERERE
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH (78) (311
Taxation outside Hong Kong BBIRINAIE — 84
(78) (227)
Deferred income tax (Note 9) BEFEH (FI59) 490 801
18,380 16,863
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25

26

140

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

The taxation on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount

that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

companies comprising the Group as follows:

25 FBHRAX(E)
ALERBRTAG FIT R BB RRE
BRAKEE T QRN IS
MEFENERBBZEEMOT

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Profit before income tax B S A A E A 111,086 106,939
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits HREANEMB R AR
of the respective subsidiaries BB RSt E R THIE 14,644 13,764
Tax losses for which no deferred REERIRIEFTISH
income tax asset was recognised BENHIEEE 2,621 1,208
Income not subject to tax BAZBBA (181) (138)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose ORI [,117 1,907
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B 2 BIAEROTIEESE (122) “)
Recognition of previously unrecognised 2 BIARHERH
temporary difference ERuER — )
Over-provision in prior year BEFEHBREEE (78) (227)
Withholding tax on unremitted R E N B AR
earnings of subsidiaries in Mainland China REBN ST 379 355
Income tax expense PSR 18,380 16,863

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of approximately HK$ 173,685,000 (2012:

HK$27,868,000).

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7
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H tl*‘

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 3| December 2013 used to calculate the basic earnings per share has
accounted for the share subdivision which was effective from 24 May 2013,
where each share of the Company of HK$0.0| per share was subdivided
into 2 shares of HK$0.005 per share with effective from 24 May 2013. The
corresponding weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2012 has

been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the said share subdivision.

Therefore, after accounting for the effect of share subdivision, the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 3|
December 2013 and 2012 included 20,000,000 ordinary shares with par
value of HK$0.005 in issue, 580,000,000 shares with par value of HK$0.005
each issued pursuant to the capitalisation issue as if the shares had been
in issue throughout the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 and
200,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.005 each issued on 16
January 2012 in connection with the listing of the Company's ordinary shares

on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

B AR RE

27 SREF

(2)

E- %N

BRERBN T BHARRERR
BAEEFREMEEAFAE %
TE B INEFHHE MR

=]
=0 °

BE013FN2A3IBLEFE A
R ESREARFHBBHITYE
BREMETHHEEBEBE2013
F5A214BEMNRDIFAR 1B
201355248 - BREECO
BT LROFHEAMREREE
0.005/87C - RN IFANT EE B
WMENFHEERMNEETER
PR E A 8K

At - ZRBRMHFANTER
REZE2013F K202 12H31H
IFFEEBETERRAINETS
£1814%20,000,0008% & A% I {E0.005
ATHEETLAR  BEEX
b 3171 21T #9580,000,00088 &
IREE0.005 8 TR D (IELARR
PREZE20I3F K2012F 12431
BIEFEE%1T) K&200,000,000
BR20124E | B I6BRAD BN L
BRNE AR AT LT M EITE
FREBE0.005E TR L BAL o

Annual Report £ % 2013 141



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

27

142

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd)

(@)

27 BREFE)

Basic (Contd) @ EBXE)
2013 2012
Profit attributable to equity holders of RRRIERFAA
the Company (HK$'000) EitaH (F5T) 93,050 89,943
(Restated)
(EZ51)
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITE B
shares in issue (in thousand shares) IEFHE (FR) 800,000 791,803
(Restated)
(E31)
Basic and diluted eamings per share BREAREERT
(HK cents per share) (BRE) 11.63 I1.36
Diluted (b) #E
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average BREFERMNTBEBRBRERL LR

number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 3| December 2013 and

2012 are the same as the basic eamings per share as there is no potential

ordinary share for the years ended 3| December 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

]
] y B 36 ) B F
DIVIDENDS 28 RE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Interim dividends declared and paid by the Company 22 ] E ik &K {5 89 A H3A% B
— HK2.8 cents per share (2012: HKI.65 cents —&iR28#M(2012F : Bk
per share) (Note (a)) 16581l ) (3T (2)) 22,400 13200
Final dividends proposed by the Company AR ABR A R EARR B
— HKI.8 cents per share — &% 1.8 781
(2012: HKI.75 cents per share) (Note (b)) (20124 : & 1.75784)
(KI&E (b)) 14,400 14,000
Special dividends proposed by the Company AR ERIRA IR S
— HKI5 cents per share (Note (c)) — &R 15 B (PR (o)) 120,000 —
156,800 27,200

The final and special dividends declared after the end of the reporting period have

not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Notes:

(@) For interim dividend declared and paid for year 2012, amount of dividend per share
was adjusted from HK3.3 cents per share to HKI.65 per share due to the share
subdivision during the year (Note |3 (a)).

(b)  For final dividend declared and paid for year 2012, the amount of dividend per share
was adjusted from HK3.5 cents per share to HKI.75 cents per share due to the share

subdivision during the year (Note |3 (a)).

Final dividend for the year ended 3| December 2013 of HKI.8 cents per share
amounting to HK$14,400,000 is based on 800,000,000 shares in issue as at 3|
December 2013 and will be proposed by the board of Directors on 18 March 2014.

() Special dividend for the year ended 3| December 2013 of HKI5 cents per share
amounting to HK$120,000,000 will be proposed by the board of Directors on 18
March 2014,

RS BRI R R RIS
BEIASBEHRNAE

B :

@

FEBRIKM2012FE K+ R
B AROHFARFRER - SRR
EEBERIIBEWAZRZFGAR .65
il (HiEE13G) e

BB E KRR 20126 E 6K 2B
B ARGHFARFRNER - SRR
EEBERISHBWAZRZFAR.75H
il (HiEE13G@) o

FEZE2013FI12A3IBLEFEERARK
HRE EFER2014F3A 1801
HEEIRAR20I3FI12A3IBE#T
#1800,000,000f% B 10 A&+ & E 1 &) R
B Bik1.87 (L - 4% 14,400,000%
=.

EZEN014F38 I8HEBEREZRE
2013F 12A3I B IEFERMERIRS -
SR I58L - 42%8120,000,000 T ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

29 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 29 FERESRERMT
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from ) BRFSHAGNESEXKHMER
operations LFEYER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Profit before income tax B PG B AT & A 111,086 106,939
Adjustments for: FATEEHE
Interest income FBUWA (559) (504)
Interest expense FERX 2 3
Depreciation nE 2,564 2215
(Gains)/losses on disposal of property, HEmE
plant and equipment B Rt () /B8 (1 4
Gains on disposal of HERAHLHE
available-for-sale financial assets EREEKS — (8)
Bad debt written-off SRR 5 234 —
Share-based payment PARR 1D R EREE (3K 1,425 94
Dividend income BREWA — (26)
Gains on acquisition of a subsidiary W R — P 2 A& (874) —
113,877 108,755
Changes in working capital: LEEE
Trade receivables BHRWHE (28,709) (32,259)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T FUE « & & R E M EUKIE 3,692 (3251)
Pledged deposits EERER (1,997) (3,863)
Trade payables BHRNZE 20,937 8399
Other payables and accruals Hio A FIEKESER 11,897 2444
Cash generated from operations REZXBERE 119,697 80,225

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd)

(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

B AR RE

29 FRERERERME(E)
b) REERERERA  HEWE -
BRERBRBORERERSE !

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TET

Net book amount (Note 5) REFEPES) 20 100
Gains/(losses) on disposal of property, HENE  BER

plant and equipment (Note 20) J e/ (B518) (fEE20) I (42)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE K

plant and equipment REMERIE 21 58

Non-cash transaction

() During the year ended 3| December 2013, the Group acquired AOE-
TKW Logistics India Private Limited (“AOE-TKW India"), an existing

customer of its subsidiary named AOE Freight. Trade receivables
recorded under AOE Freight amounted to HK$24,077,000 was
eliminated against trade payables recorded under AOE-TKW India in

the same amount upon acquisition.

() ¥HELXS

(i)

B Z20B3F1RA3AB Ik &
B AEEKBEWE A
AMFEEN—RAETR
% BAOE-TKW Logistics
India Private Limited([ AOE-
TKW Indial) o RUKEEES -
BMTEELETEER
24,077,000 & 6 B 5 FE
FIE B B AOE-TKW India
st EREENE HE
IR
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M BB R

30

31

146

COMMITMENTS 30 AR
Operating lease commitments ReHERE
The Group leases certain office premises under non-cancellable operating lease AEBRBETAHECEHERARE
agreements. ETHREYE
The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AEERZETAIHELEHER T
operating leases are as follows: RRGAEHE R FETRMAT -
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Not later than | year —FEPA 8,832 3771
Later than | year and not later than 5 year —FUERFURA 10,730 1,039
19,562 4810
BUSINESS COMBINATION 3 EBAH

On 30 November 2013, the Group acquired 51% of the share capital in AOE-
TKW India for HK$6,000 from Mr. Rajender Kumar Goyal and Mr. Mohit Goyal,
independent third parties of the Group. The acquisition is expected to increase
the Group's market share in the South East Asia region and reduce cost through
economies of scale. Gain on bargain purchase of HK$874,000 arising from
acquisition of AOE-TKW India is recorded.

On 27 June 2012, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital in Pacific Well
(HK) Limited (“Pacific Well") and Oriental Way (HK.) Limited (“Oriental Way")
for HK$ 100,000 and HK$ 100,000 respectively from the directors of the Company -
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki. The
acquisitions are expected to increase the Group's market share in the South China
regions and reduce cost through economies of scale. The goodwill of HK$557,000
arising from acquisition of Pacific Well is attributable to the business development

in the Asia-Pacific segment.

The Group does not recognise any goodwill or gain on bargain purchase in the
business combination of Oriental Way. The fair values of identifiable assets acquired

and liabilities are equivalent to the consideration paid for the equity interest.

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @R AR A7
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] -]

WM

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Contd)

The following table summarises the consideration paid for AOE-TKW India and the
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MBER

31 EREHH(E)

B &£

TRt 5 AOE-TKW India X T EI (B
BRI BB B HA R 2 A BT U BB B E % TR

EEENSE -
HK$'000
FTET
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and ~ FTEEAIR A EER
liabilities assumed FAREENERSHE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBReEEY 1,700
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE 19
Trade receivables BH RN 25,365
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRFE - e REMERZE 458
Trade payables EHRENNIE (24,537)
Other payables and accruals Hih A RIE R ESE R (165)
Current income tax liabilities ZHMEHAas (1,114)
Total identifiable net assets A BRI B EHER R 1,726
Non-controlling interests R (846)
Gain from a bargain purchase (B U (874)
Cash consideration BeRE 6
Cash paid to acquire business, net of cash acquired YEEBENENRS  HRAER:
- Cash consideration -HeRE (6)
- Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired —-REUWEMRBLARNRERAEEEY ,700
1,694
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont'd) 3l EBAHE)
TERBAFRERRREZFHRERR

WE R RERANRBEERAAER

The following table summarises the consideration paid for Pacific Well and Oriental

Way and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised at

148

the acquisition date. BERNEHE o
Pacific Well ~ Oriental Way Total
(=47 RE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T THET
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets ~ FTMBARAIEERIRIESRE
acquired and liabilities assumed MEZELHE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEFEY 367 264 631
Property, plant and equipment W - BE R 50 14 64
Trade receivables B 2 MR 2,700 93 2793
Amounts due from a related company FE e — I BE R R R 5008 I 40 41
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TBI5UE « £ & R E MK RIE 10 — 10
Trade payables EHRENNIE (1,879) (181) (2,060)
Other payables and accruals H b e 508 R ERt B R (166) (95) 61)
Amounts due to related companies & {1 R 1 Rl 3B (1,540) (3 (1,571)
Current income tax liabilities EHMRENAG — 4) 4)
Total identifiable net (liabilities)/assets AHRI(BE) BEEERRE (457) 100 (357)
Goodwil BE 557 — 557
Cash consideration ReRE 100 100 200
Cash paid to acquire business, net of cash ~ WHEEBHENERE - HKREFE
acquired Be
- Cash consideration -RerE (100) (100) (200)
- Cash and cash equivalents in —RE WM E L AR
subsidiaries acquired ERHEEEY 367 264 631
267 164 431
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

] -]

WM

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Contd)

In 2013, the acquired business of AOE-TKW India contributed revenues of
approximately HK$15,220,000 and net loss of approximately HK$195,000 to
the Group for the period from 30 November 2013 to 3| December 2013. If
the acquisition had occurred on | January 2013, unaudited consolidated revenue
and unaudited consolidated profit for the year would have been approximately
HK$81 1,985,000 and HK$93,503,000 respectively.

In 2012, the acquired business of Pacific Well contributed revenues of
approximately HK$ 1,609,000 and net loss of approximately HK$8,249,000 to the
Group for the period from 27 June 2012 to 31 December 2012 and the acquired
business of Oriental Way contributed revenues of approximately HK$ 1,000 and
net loss of approximately HK$ 1,610,000 to the Group for the period from 27 June
2012 to 31 December 2012. If the acquisitions had occurred on | January 2012,
unaudited consolidated revenue and unaudited consolidated profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$674,200,000 and HK$89,260,000 respectively.

31

B AR RE

ERaft(2)

20135 + TR AOE-TKW India %
BR2013F 11 A30HE2013%F 12 A3
AHIR AR S B R E 4 15,220,000 7
TR R EA) 19500087 o i ER
013F | A1 BEE - AIFRREEZE
BUEBRAREEZGZEEMNED AL A
811,985,000 7T % 93,503,000 BT ©

R20012F - FIREBHRHEBR 20125
6B27BE201F12A3IBEHEE AKX
SEERU 4 1,609,000 7T K B 18 F
B478249.000/8 7T - MATWERNRERE
% B 7R2012F 68278 £202F 12 A
3| B ARSESRIREL 10008 7T
REIEFEL 16100008 T © i KEBR
012F 1 A1 BEAE - AIFARLERZER
BUEBRAREEZGZEEMNE DAL A
674,200,000 % 7T )2 89,260,000 A 7T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M BB R

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions, or directors or officers of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

Except as disclosed elsewhere, during the year, the following transactions were

carried out with related parties at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

BELRE

BERE T B AN R R RE S B IR S R R I 9
AR BT RE SRR
RERYENNER  SEARERE
MEARIMNESXRABE -

FREMEBEMEEESN - RFR R
HEETHEBENRTETTATR

(@)  Transactions @ X5
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Sales to related companies: [ B HSE N B SR -

— Pacific Well — &t — 2
— Oriental Way —RE — |

Cost of services paid to related companies: [ B85 A B 2 (A ARFEACA
— Pacific Well — &t — 7545
— Oriental Way —RE — 705
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33

34

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

] B 36 % LB £
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 32 BHMAERZ(E)
(b)  Balance (b) #EER
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000
TEx THT
Loan to an associated company A — A & R AMEH 2 B
(Note 18(b)) (FHEE18(b)) 3,600 —

(c)  Key management compensation
Key management includes Directors and senior management. The

compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is

() EEEBASHMH
EEEANEREEERSRE
BE - pEERBENHERNE
ZEEABNHMII AT :

shown below:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Salaries, bonus and other welfares HE - A RHMER 15,564 16,030
Pension - defined contribution plans ﬁﬁi% TR FETE 266 229
15,830 16,259
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 33 BBER

The Company's subsidiaries have issued bank guarantees to certain airline suppliers
as securities for purchase of air cargo space. At 31 December 2013, the guarantees

granted amounted to approximately HK$70,456,000 (2012: HK$63,935,000).

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 34

ASR Victory is the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Group.

ARAIMBRR B RE THMZERFMHE
BMEHRTER  EFRABEMZEYR
fIRIEHR - 2013F 128318 - B
HYEIR#) 570,456,000/ 7T (20124 :
63935000/87T) °

BAEZERDA
ASR Victory RN BB B &R ER A
Ej o
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GLOSSARY

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have

the following meanings.

“AOCE Freight”  means

“ACE Freight means
(Shenzhen)”

“ASR Logistics”  means

“ASR Worldwide" means

“ASR Victory" means
“BAHT" means
“Board” means
“Company” means

AOE Freight (HK) Limited (/¥ &3 B2 A)), a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 30 April
1991 and wholly-owned by ASR Limited

AOE Freight (Shenzhen) Limited (%)% BIfR 5iE N 1E
(FYNBR AR, a limited liability company incorporated
in PRC on 18 November 2004 and wholly-owned by
AOE Freight

ASR Logistics Limited (¥ ¥ BRAT]), a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 24 January
2007 and wholly-owned by ASR Limited

ASR Worldwide Logistics Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong on 3 April 2008 and
wholly-owned by ASR Limited

ASR Victory Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 3 June 201 1,
being 33.33% owned by Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak
Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki

Thai Baht, the lawful currency of Thailand
the board of Directors of the Company

ASR Holdings Limited, an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the
Cayman Islands and the Shares of which are listed on the

Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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"“Controlling

Shareholder(s)"

"Director(s)"
“EUR"

“GBP"

“Group”

"GSA"

"HK$" and
"HK cents”

"Hong Kong"

“INR"

4py”
"KOR"

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Main Board"

“Model Code”

“MOP"

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in
the context of our Company, means Mr. Yu Ho Yuen,
Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki
and ASR Victory

the director(s) of the Company
Euro, the lawful currency of Europe

Great British Pound, the lawful currency of United
Kingdom

the Company and its subsidiaries

a general sales agent appointed by an airline which
typically authorises such a general sales agent to exclusively
represents the airline in a region or territory in relation to
that airline in particular segment of business e.g. air cargo
space or passengers tickets

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Indian Rupee, the lawful currency of India

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan
Korea Won, the lawful currency of Korea

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, which excludes the Growth Enterprise Market
and the options market

model code for securities by directors of listed issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

Macau Patacas, the lawful currency of Macau
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GLOSSARY

AR LMRAETZA
WRE RARAM
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EEE BEREE
K ASR Victory
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GLOSSARY

S

“NTD"

“PRC"

"“Prospectus”
"Reorganisation”

“RM
"RMB"

“SFO”

"SGD”
“Share(s)"

“Shareholder(s)"

"Stock Exchange”

“Us$”

“Worldwide
Logistics”

154

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

Taiwan dollars, the lawful currency of Taiwan

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose
of this annual report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

the Company's prospectus dated 30 December 201 |

the corporate reorganisation of our Group conducted in
preparation for the Listing

Malaysia Ringgit, the lawful currency of Malaysia
Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore

share(s) of HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the
Company

shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

United States Dollar, the lawful currency of the United
States of America

Worldwide Logistics Limited(ttt R B HBR A7), a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on
5 January 2001, being 60% owned by Mr. Joseph Patrick
Monaghan and 40% owned by Mr. Fong Wai Ming Francis
Willy, both being independent third parties

ASR Holdings Limited ¢ @ ZRER AT

[AkER]

(&4

(5%

AR

[EF K

HEER ]

Kyt

[t )

[BR]

[ B2 A ]

E

[EREE

]

]

i

mE

15

15

R ERIAR

REARLAE R
EHME TREE
B E R R

AARBEA0IF2
A30BMARER

r&EEARE
BPNGIEE

& L mimi

SRATZEZEERSE
REEEEEARK
BEREDETIEES

NEIE(ED] - ENHERT - 8
TRARMTTE R

HNBUOATE
T

B MK
ARARBRAFERAEE
0.005 B T HI L {p
NGl g

ERBA
3

EEETEBET

ARHGABERD

tREERRAA

fll 720011 A5H
EAAMKLZER
X Al HJoseph Patrick
Monaghan % 4 & 77 & 87
REBRBEIE=R)
2 BI% A 60% K 40%



Am ASR Holdings Limited
RMIFERBRA A

HOLDINGS



	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	BALANCE SHEET
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	GLOSSARY
	BACK COVER

